BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

MONDAY 4TH SEPTEMBER 2017
AT 6.00 P.M.

PARKSIDE SUITE, PARKSIDE, MARKET STREET, BROMSGROVE, B61 8DA

PLEASE NOTE THAT AFTER 5PM, ACCESS TO THE PARKSIDE SUITE IS VIA THE MAIN
ENTRANCE DOOR ON THE STOURBRIDGE ROAD. THE NEAREST PARKING IS EITHER THE
PARKSIDE (MARKET STREET) OR STOURBRIDGE ROAD PAY AND DISPLAY CAR PARKS

MEMBERS: Councillors R. J. Deeming (Chairman), P.L. Thomas (Vice-
Chairman), C. Allen-Jones, S. J. Baxter, M. T. Buxton,
C.A. Hotham, S. R. Peters, S. P. Shannon, M. A. Sherrey,
C. J. Spencer and P. J. Whittaker

Updates to the Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration Services will be available
in the Council Chamber one hour prior to Meeting. You are advised to arrive in advance of
the start of the Meeting to allow yourself sufficient time to read the updates.

Members of the Committee are requested to arrive at least fifteen minutes before the start
of the meeting to read any additional representations and to ask questions of the Officers
who will also make themselves available for at least one hour before the meeting. Members
are also requested to give Officers at least forty-eight hours notice of detailed, technical
guestions in order that information can be sought to enable answers to be given at the
meeting.

AGENDA
1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm
the nature of those interests.

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 3rd July 2017 (Pages 1 - 4)

4, Updates to planning applications reported at the meeting (to be circulated
prior to the start of the meeting)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Tree Preservation Order (2) 2017 - Land at Foxlydiate ADR - land adjoining
Curr Lane, Pumphouse Lane and Gypsy Lane (Pages 5 - 46)

Tree Preservation Order (3) 2017 - Tree on land at Lyttleton Place, Hagley
(Pages 47 - 62)

Tree Preservation Order (4) 2017 - Trees on land at 5 to 9 Station Road,
Hagley (Pages 63 - 84)

2017/00550/FUL - Two-storey side extension and pitched roof over existing
garage - 342 Alcester Road, Burcot, Bromsgrove B60 1BH - Mrand Mrs T
Jennings (Pages 85 - 90)

2017/00615/FUL - Two-storey side and rear extension - 99 New Road,
Bromsgrove, B60 2LL - Ms Lorna McNeil (Pages 91 - 92)

2017/00710/FUL - Demolition of conservatory and erection of a two-storey
extension - Bridge House, Fish House Lane, Stoke Prior, Bromsgrove B60
4JT - Mr Julian Lewis (Pages 93 - 98)

2017/00728/FUL - Extension to garage - Poultry Farm Cottage, Agmore Lane,
Tardebigge, Bromsgrove B60 1PS - Mr Geoff Ellis (Pages 99 - 102)

2017/00810/ADV - SIGNAGE 1 - Large extrude aluminium letting (BSLC)
back lit white illumination to the left hand side of the climbing wall block to the
western elevation of Bromsgrove Sport and Leisure Centre, and SIGNAGE 2
- extruded aluminium lettering (BSLC) white illuminated directly above the
main entrance on the western elevation of Bromsgrove Sport and Leisure
Centre - The Dolphin Centre, Schook Drive, Bromsgrove B60 1AY - Mr John
Godwin for Bromsgrove District Council (Pages 103 - 106)

2017/00833/FUL - To extend the ground floor to provide a Utility Room to the
existing kitchen and extend above this and the existing ground floor WC to
provide a first floor en-suite to the existing master bedroom - 10 Monument
Lane, Lickey, Birmingham B45 9QQ - Mr Das (Pages 107 - 110)

To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman considers to be of so
urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting

K. DICKS
Chief Executive

Parkside

Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

23rd August 2017



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Information for Members of the Public

The Planning Committee comprises 11 Councillors. Meetings are held once a
month on Mondays at 6.00 p.m. in the Parkside Suite, Parkside, Market
Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA - access to the Parkside Suite after 5pm is via
the main entrance door on the Stourbridge Road. The nearest available
public parking for the new premises is Parkside (Market Street) Pay and
Display. .

The Chairman of the Committee, who is responsible for the conduct of the
meeting, sits at the head of the table. The other Councillors sit around the
inner-tables in their party groupings. To the immediate right of the Chairman
are the Planning Officers. To the left of the Chairman is the Solicitor who
provides legal advice, and the Democratic Services Officer who takes the
Minutes of the Meeting. The Officers are paid employees of the Council who
attend the Meeting to advise the Committee. They can make
recommendations, and give advice (both in terms of procedures which must
be followed by the Committee, and on planning legislation / policy / guidance),
but they are not permitted to take part in the decision making.

All items on the Agenda are (usually) for discussion in public. You have the
right to request to inspect copies of previous Minutes, reports on this agenda,
together with the background documents used in the preparation of these
reports. Any Update Reports for the items on the Agenda are published on
the Council’'s Website at least one hour before the start of the meeting, and
extra copies of the Agenda and Reports, together with the Update Report, are
available in the public gallery. The Chairman will normally take each item of
the Agenda in turn although, in particular circumstances, these may be taken
out of sequence.

The Agenda is divided into the following sections:-

e Procedural ltems

Procedural matters usually take just a few minutes and include: apologies
for absence, approval of the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) and, where
necessary, election of a Chairman and / or Vice-Chairman. In addition,
Councillors are asked to declare whether they have any disclosable
pecuniary and / or other disclosable interests in any items to be discussed.
If a Councillor declares a disclosable pecuniary interest, he/she will
withdraw from the meeting during the discussion and voting on that item.
However, it is up to the individual Councillor concerned to decide whether
or not to declare any interest.

e Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration

() Plans and Applications to Develop, or Change of Use - Reports on
all applications will include a response from consultees, a summary of

-3-



(ii)

any observations received and a recommendation. Recent
consultation responses will be reported at the meeting within the
Update Report.

Each application will be considered in turn. When the Chairman
considers that there has been sufficient discussion, a decision will be
called for. Councillors may decide that, in order to make a fully
informed decision, they need to visit the site. If this is the case, then a
decision on the application will be deferred until the next meeting of the
Committee. Alternatively, a decision may be deferred in order that
more information can be presented / reported. If the Councillors
consider that they can proceed to making a decision, they can either
accept the recommendation(s) made in the report (suggesting any
additional conditions and / or reasons for their decision), or they can
propose an amendment, whereby Councillors may make their own
recommendation. A decision will then be taken, usually by way of a
show of hands, and the Chairman will announce the result of the vote.
Officers are not permitted to vote on applications.

Note: Delegation - All items are presumed to be matters which the
Planning Committee has delegated powers to determine. In those
instances where delegation will not or is unlikely to apply, an
appropriate indication will be given at the meeting.

Any members of the public wishing to make late additional
representations should do so in writing, or by contacting their Ward
Councillor(s) well in advance of the Meeting. You can find out who
your Ward Councillor(s) is/are at www.writetothem.com.

Members of the public should note that any application can be
determined in any manner, notwithstanding any (or no)
recommendation being made to the Planning Committee.

Development Control (Planning Enforcement) / Building Control -
These matters include such items as to whether or not enforcement
action should be taken, applications to carry out work on trees that are
the subject of a Tree Preservation Order, etc.. 'Public Speaking' policy
does not apply to this type of report, and enforcement matters are
normally dealt with as confidential items (see 'Confidential / Exempt
Business' below).

Reports of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services

These reports relate to, for example, cases where authority is sought to
commence legal proceedings for non-compliance with a variety of formal
planning notices. They are generally mainly concerned with administrative
and legal aspects of planning matters. 'Public Speaking' policy does not
apply to this type of report, and legal issues are normally dealt with as
confidential items (see 'Confidential / Exempt Business' below).

Urgent Business

In exceptional circumstances, and at the discretion of the Chairman,
certain items may be raised at the meeting which are not on the Agenda.
The Agenda is published a week in advance of the meeting and an urgent
matter may require a decision. However, the Chairman must give a reason

-4 -



for accepting any "urgent business". 'Public Speaking' policy would not
necessarily apply to this type of report.

e Confidential / Exempt Business

Certain items on the Agenda may be marked "confidential" or "exempt";
any papers relating to such items will not be available to the press and
public. The Committee has the right to ask the press and public to leave
the room while these reports are considered. Brief details of the matters to
be discussed will be given, but the Committee has to give specific reasons
for excluding the press and public.

Public Speaking

Where members of the public have registered to speak on planning
applications, the item will be dealt with in the following order (subject to the
discretion of the Chairman):-

» Introduction of item by the Chairman;

= Officer's presentation;

» Representations by objector;

» Representations by applicant (or representative) or supporter;
» Parish Council speaker (if applicable) and / or Ward Councillor;

= Consideration of application by Councillors, including questions to
officers.

All public speakers will be called to the designated area by the Chairman and
will have a maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee.

Feedback forms will be available within the Council Chamber for the duration
of the meeting in order that members of the public may comment on the
facilities for speaking at Planning Committee meetings.

NOTES

Councillors who have not been appointed to the Planning Committee but who
wish to attend and to make comments on any application on the attached
agenda are required to inform the Chairman and the relevant Committee
Services Officer before 12:00 noon on the day of the meeting. They will also
be subject to three minute time limit.

Councillors who are interested in the detail of any matter to be considered are
invited to consult the files with the relevant Officer(s) in order to avoid
unnecessary debate on such detail at the meeting. Members of the
Committee are requested to arrive at least one hour before the start of the
meeting to read any additional representations and to ask questions of the
Officers who will also make themselves available for at least one hour before
the meeting. Members are also requested to give Officers at least forty-eight
hours notice of detailed, technical questions in order that information can be
sought to enable answers to be given at the meeting. Councillors should

-5-



familiarise themselves with the location of particular sites of interest to
minimise the need for Committee Site Visits.

Councillors are respectfully reminded that applications deferred for more
information should be kept to a minimum and only brought back to Committee
for determination where the matter cannot be authorised to be determined by
the Head of Planning and Regeneration Services.

In certain circumstances, items may be taken out of the order than that shown
on the agenda and, therefore, no certain advice can be provided about the
time at which any item may be considered. However, it is recommended that
any person attending a meeting of the Committee, whether to speak or to just
observe proceedings and listen to the debate, be present for the
commencement of the meeting at 6.00 p.m.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -
SECTION 100D

1. All applications for planning permission include, as background papers,
the following documents:-

a. The application - the forms and any other written documents
submitted by the applicant, the applicant's architect or agent, or
both, whichever the case may be, together with any submitted
plans, drawings or diagrams.

b. Letters of objection, observations, comments or other
representations received about the proposals.

C. Any written notes by officers relating to the application and
contained within the file relating to the particular application.

d. Invitations to the Council to comment or make observations on
matters which are primarily the concern of another Authority,
Statutory Body or Government Department.

2. In relation to any matters referred to in the reports, the following are
regarded as the standard background papers:-

Policies contained within the County Structure Plan and Local Plan
below, and Planning Policy Statements, specifically referred to as

follows:-

BDP - Bromsgrove District 2011-2-30

SPG - Supplementary Policy Guidance

SPD Supplementary Planning Document
3. Any other items listed, or referred to, in the report.

Note: For the purposes of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act
1985, unless otherwise stated against a particular report, "background papers"
in accordance with Section 100D will always include the Case Officer's written
report and any letters or memoranda of representation received (including

-6 -



correspondence from Parish Councils, the Highway Authority, statutory
consultees, other 'statutory undertakers' and all internal District Council
Departments).

Further information

If you require any further information on the Planning Committee, or wish to
register to speak on any application for planning permission to be considered
by the Committee, in the first instance, please contact Jan Smyth, Democratic
Services Officer, at jan.smyth@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk, or telephone
(01527) 64252 Extn. 3266.






Agenda Iltem 3

BROMSGROVEDISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

3RD JULY 2017, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors R. J. Deeming (Chairman), P.L. Thomas (Vice-Chairman),
C. Allen-Jones, M. T. Buxton, S. R. Peters, S. P. Shannon, M. A. Sherrey,
L. J. Turner and P. J. Whittaker

Officers: Mr. D. M. Birch, Mr. A. Fulford, Miss C. Gilbert, Mr. D. Kelly,
Mrs. T. Lovejoy and Mrs. J. Smyth

10/17 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors S.J.

Baxter and C.J. Spencer. Councillor L.J. Turner was confirmed as
Councillor Baxter’s substitute for the meeting.

11/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor C. Allen-Jones declared an Other Disclosable Interest during
the Committee’s consideration of Agenda Item 6 (Planning Application
2016/1150 — 1 Plymouth Drive, Barnt Green, Birmingham B45 8JB), in
that one of the objectors present at the meeting, was known to him. He
advised that, in view of this, he would withdraw from the meeting for the
item. Councillor Allen-Jones withdrew from the meeting and was not
present during the public speaking process nor the Committee’s debate
and voting on the matter.

Councillor M.A. Sherrey declared an Other Disclosable Interest prior to
the Committee’s consideration of Agenda Item 8 (Planning Application
2017/00353/FUL — 2 Thicknall Rise, Hagley, Stourbridge DY9 0QL) in
that she had been involved in Parish Council discussions on the
Application and considered she had a pre-determined view on the
matter. Councillor Sherrey withdrew from the meeting for the duration of
the Committee’s consideration and voting on the matter.

12/17 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 5™ June
2017 were received.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting be approved as a correct
record.

Page 1-



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
3rd July 2017

13/17 2016/1148 - ERECTION OF AGRICULTURAL BUILDING, ACCESS
TRACK AND ASSOCIATED HARD STANDING - NEWHOUSE FARM,
LEA END LANE, HOPWOOD, BIRMINGHAM B48 7AX - MR PHILLIP
MICHELL

For further clarification, Officers provided additional information in
relation to the position of the proposed agricultural building and floor
levels, as detailed in the published Update Report, copies of which were
provided to Members and the public gallery prior to the start of the
meeting.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Ms Julia Day (Tyler-Parkes Planning
Consultants), acting on behalf of Mr Reck, a local resident and Mrs Julie
Samuals, objector, and also acting on behalf of other local residents,
addressed the Committee objecting to the Application. Mr Philip
Michell, the Applicant, also addressed the Committee. Councillor C.A.
Hotham, in whose Ward the application site was located, also addressed
the Committee.

The Committee then considered the Application, which Officers had
recommended for approval. The matter of where the excavated spoil
from the proposed cut into the slope would go was raised, with a
suggestion that utilising the spoil to create a bund, instead of spreading
the soil across the site as proposed, would lessen the impact of the
building even further. Members agreed an additional appropriate
Landscaping Condition be included in the decision.

RESOLVED that, Planning Permission be granted, subject to the
Conditions set out on pages 15 to 16 of the main Agenda report, and the
following additional Condition:

8. No development shall commence on the agricultural building, until
details of an earth bund to be positioned along the south eastern
elevation of the agricultural building; including the source, quantity
and quality of the soil to be used, together with a detailed planting
schedule, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter, and prior to commencement of development on the
agricultural building the bund shall be formed and the planting
carried out in accordance with the agreed specification.

The bund shall thereafter be maintained in perpetuity to the
satisfaction of the Planning Authority and all of the planting shall
be maintained to encourage its establishment for a minimum of
five years following contractual practical completion of the
development. Any trees or significant areas of planting which are
removed, die or become, in the opinion of the Local Planning
Authority, seriously damaged or defective within this period, shall
be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of

Page 2-



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
3rd July 2017

species, size and number as originally approved, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity to ensure the
implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping.

14/17 2016/1150 - PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING AND
ERECTION OF 2 NO. DWELLINGS - 1 PLYMOUTH DRIVE, BARNT
GREEN, BIRMINGHAM B45 8JB - U.D.C (MIDLANDS) LTD

Officers reported on a further objection that had been received, as
detailed in the published Update Report, copies of which were provided
to Members and the public gallery prior to the start of the meeting.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Peter Courts, addressed the
Committee objecting to the Application. Mrs Ann Eden, addressed the
Committee in support of the Application. The Committee’s Legal
Advisory, Mrs Tracy Lovejoy, also read out a representation, on behalf of
Councillor C.B. Taylor, in whose Ward the Application site was located,
in his absence.

RESOLVED that, Planning Permission be granted, subject to the
Conditions and Informatives set out on Pages 22 to 25 of the main
Agenda Report.

15/17 2017/0200 - EXTENSION AND RE-ROOFING OF 2 NO. POULTRY
BUILDINGS, ERECTION OF POLYTUNNEL AND RELOCATION OF
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED AGRICULTURAL WORKERS DWELLING
(REFERENCE 2013/0624) - LAUREL FARM, DAGNELL END ROAD,
REDDITCH, WORCESTERSHIRE B98 9BD - MR ROBERT CALDECOTT

RESOLVED that authority be delegated to the Head of Planning and
Regeneration Services to grant Planning Permission, subject to:

1) receipt of a suitable and satisfactory legal mechanism in relation to:
i) Securing a permanent agricultural tie on the dwelling; and
i) Ensuring that only one of either this permission or planning
permission 2013/0624 can be implemented; and
2) the Conditions set out on pages 30 to 32 of the main Agenda report.
16/17 2017/00353/FUL - 2 STOREY REAR AND SIDE EXTENSION (RENEWAL

OF APPLICATION 2014/0341 - 2 THICKNALL RISE, HAGLEY,
STOURBRIDGE, WORCESTERSHIRE DY9 0LQ - MR D SIKHAM

The Committee received an update on an additional objection, received
from Councillor S.R. Colella, Ward Member for Hagley West together

Page 3-



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
3rd July 2017

with Officer responses, as detailed in the published Update Report,

copies of which were provided to Members and the public gallery prior to
the start of the meeting.

RESOLVED that Planning Permission be granted, subject to the
Conditions set out on pages 35 and 36 of the main Agenda report.

17/17 2017/00359/FUL - ERECTION OF NEW DWELLING (AMENDMENT TO
PLANNING PERMISSION 2015/0598) - .452 BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
CATSHILL, BROMSGROVE B61 OHR - MR RICHARD DE SOUSA

Officers provided a verbal update on a late representation by the
Council’'s Tree Officer, who advised that he had no objection to the
proposal subject to conditions.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Richard de Sousa, the Applicant,
addressed the Committee.

RESOLVED that, Planning Permission be granted, subject to the

Conditions and Informatives as detailed on pages 39 to 40 of the main
Agenda report.

18/17 2017/00428/FUL - ERECTION OF SINGLE AND TWO STOREY
EXTENSIONS - 9 WITHYBED LANE, ALVECHURCH, BIRMINGHAM B48
7NX - MR AND MRS C AND M JORDAN

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mrs Rachel Loveless, a nearby
resident, addressed the Committee on behalf of herself and Mrs Janine
Baker, objecting to the Application. Mr Gary Phillips, the Applicant’s
Agent, also addressed the Committee. The Committee’s Legal Advisor,
Mrs Tracy Lovejoy, also read out a representation on behalf of

Councillor K.J. Van Der Plank, in whose Ward the site is located, in her
absence.

RESOLVED that, Planning Permission be granted, subject to the
Conditions detailed on pages 42 to 43 of the Main Agenda report.

19/17 2017/00554/FUL - FIRST FLOOR SIDE EXTENSION - 40 PENHURST
ROAD, BROMSGROVE B60 2SN - MR AND MRS R WILKES

RESOLVED that, Planning Permission be granted, subject to the
Conditions detailed on pages 46 to 47 of the main Agenda report.

The meeting closed at 7.18 p.m.

Chairman

Page 4-



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO.2)2017 — Trees on land Foxlydiate ADR
land adjoining Curr Lane, Pumphouse Lane and Gypsy Lane.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Peter Whittaker

Portfolio Holder Consulted No

Relevant Head of Service Head of Planning and Environmental Services
Ward(s) Affected Bentley and Pauncefoot

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

The Committee is asked to consider the confirmation with modification of Tree
Preservation Order (No.2) 2017 relating to trees on land at Foxlydiate (ADR
designated land) land adjoining Curr Lane, Pumphouse Lane and Gypsy
Lane.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Provisional Tree Preservation Order (No.2) 2017
relating to trees on land at Foxlydiate (ADR designated Land) adjoining
Curr Lane, Pumphouse Lane and Gypsy Lane be confirmed with
modification from the Provisional Order as raised and shown in
Appendix (1) to that as shown on the plan and described in the schedule
of trees in Appendix (2).

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1  There are no financial implications relating to the confirmation of the TPO.

Legal Implications

3.2  Town and Country Planning (Trees) Regulations 2012 covers this procedure.

Service / Operational Implications

Background

3.3 The site has been designated as ADR land within the Bromsgrove 2011- 2030
Local Plan which was adopted in January 2017and is therefore at imminent
threat of potential large scale development. Interest has been shown in the

Page 5



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

site by Heyford Development Ltd and UK Land and Development Ltd who
together have made an Outline Application on the site under Planning
Reference Number 2016/0263. The site contains a varied mix of native
species and age class trees that form valuable woodland, groups, field line
boundary, and stand prominently in individual situations. All the trees
contained within the Order on the site offer a high degree of visual amenity
value and add greatly to the character and habitat value of the site and area.
The potential development of the site will undoubtedly bring an increased
pressure for management of the trees, both in the short and longer term, and
may present a risk of trees being lost.

The following objection has been received in respect of the Provisional
TPO Order having been raised:

Letter from Moray Simpson of Wardell Armstrong on behalf of Heyford
Development Ltd and UK land and Development Ltd (Appendix 3)

My comments in relation to the points raised within the letter are as follows:

a. The site is subject to a “Hybrid Planning Application (Ref 16/0263)” which
is at the outline application stage. The current Bromsgrove Local Planning
Plan, within which the land has been designated as ADR land, was
adopted in January 2017. However from the first major meeting regarding
this site it was always made clear by myself that the site would be subject
to a tree preservation order once it had been fully surveyed and assessed.
There is currently no granted planning consent on the site.

b. | generally disagree with the comment that trees not worthy of protection
have been protected, although having carried out a further review of the
guality of the trees within the Order, a small number of trees (T3, T64 and
T68), have subsequently been removed as it was clear they were in
decline and had only a short expected future life span. | totally disagree
with the comment made that 26 trees are worthy of only a (C) grading with
a BS5837:2012 assessment (see appendix 4) and, therefore, potentially
would not be worthy of retention in a planning situation. | feel that there
are no (U) grade trees within the Order (see Appendix 4).

c. The scale of 1:6000 @ A3 is accurate on the plan produced with the Order
and although this scale does not appear on a standard scale rule, it can
still be used to calculate and measure the position of trees. The size and
scale of the plan was checked and approved by our Legal Department.
However, to assist in regard to this issue further, a scale bar has been
included in the revised / modified plan

d. On checking the position of T76 it was found to be wrongly positioned on
the provisional plan. This has now been corrected on the modified plan.

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

However, although it did need to be positioned more accurately it was a
single tree in an open field. There was, therefore, no risk of T76 being
mistaken as any other tree within the Provisional Order stage of this TPO.

e. My view is that the boundary shown for Group 15 on the Provisional Order
did include the most Westerly Oak tree. However, this group of trees has
now been defined as individual trees thereby clarifying further on the
protected status of the most Westerly positioned Oak

f. | feel that the size of the text used within the plan of the Order for both the
road names and numbering of the trees is appropriately legible. This issue
was checked with our Legal team before producing the Order who
confirmed the plan at these settings was appropriately clear and legible.

g. | feel that the boundaries of the groups and woodland block are
appropriately shown and provide clarity on what it protected.

h. The Provisional Order (Appendix 1) did not contain the numbers of trees
contained within each group but did give a size specification of 200mm
stem diameter at ground level and was included within the schedule of the
order. The number of trees and species has now been surveyed and is
included within the Modified Order and the size specification will also
remain within the new schedule.

i. Having further reviewed the trees, a small number of trees that would have
influenced the access routes have been removed from the Modified Order
- T3, T44 and T69 - as they were found to be either in decline or of
generally poorer quality and of low prominence and visual amenity value.
If the proposed road layout, as shown within Outline application
2016/0263, was to be passed, | would expect to lose a section of the trees
to the centre of the provisional order group - (G12) (G12 and G15 - within
the Modified Order. If the level of tree loss within these groups is kept to
the minimum level envisage as being required to achieve the layout of the
outline application | would find the level of tree loss acceptable. The effect
of other trees within the site on any full application would be a planning
matter and would be evaluated at the time the application was made. A
granted planning consent would override TPO protection of trees but it
does give the Council an increased level of control over tree related issues
and allows stronger ground to ensure that trees to be retained within
developments are fully protected during any development works.

3.4  Conclusion
The trees covered by this Order are all highly prominent trees of very good

quality. They offer a high degree of visual amenity value to the site and area
while adding greatly to the character of site and area in general. | therefore

Page 7



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

recommend to the Committee that the Order is confirmed with the
modifications as shown in Appendix (2) of this report.

Policy Implications

3.5 None - Council Objective 4- Environment, Priority C04 Planning

Climate Change / Carbon/ Biodiversity

3.6  The Proposal in relation to confirming the TPO can only be seen as a positive
impact on the environment.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.7  The customers have been provided with the relevant notification and the
responses received are attached in the appendices. The customers will
receive notification by post of the decision of the committee.

3.8  Equalities and Diversity implications- None

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

There are no significant risks associated with the details included in this
report.

5. APPENDICES

Appendices 1. Copy of the provisional TPO order

Appendices 2. Copy of the Plan and schedule for the proposed
Modified Order

Appendices 3. Copy of the letter of objection from Wardell Armstrong

Appendices 4. Copy of BS5837:2012 tree assessment criteria.

Appendices 5. Photographs of a number of the trees within the order.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

7. KEY
TPO - Tree Preservation Order

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Gavin Boyes

Email: gavin.boyes@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Tel: (01527 64252 Extension 3094)

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 5

Appendix 1

Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012
Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Tree Preservation Order (2) 2017

Bromsgrove District Council in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order—

Citation

1. This Order may be cited as Tree Preservation order (2) 2017

Interpretation

2.— (1) In this Order “the authority” means Bromsgrove District Council.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered
regulation is a reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012,

Effect
3.— (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is
made.

(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation
orders) or subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners)
and, subject to the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall—

(a) cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or

(b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,

any tree specified in the Schedule to this Order except with the written consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of State in
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject to conditions, in
accordance with those conditions.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being
a tree to be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197
(planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees),
this Order takes effect as from the time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 21% March 2017
Signed on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council

Authorised by the Council to sign in that behalf

Page 9



Agenda Iltem 5

First Schedule

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

™ Lime 401670-267249 In grounds of Foxlydiate Farm

T2 Lime 401568-267075 Side of Springhill Cottage

T3 Ash 401576-267090 Opposite 43 Foxlydiate Lane

T4 Oak 401139-266359 Field boundary to East of Millfield
Farm

T5 Oak 401100-266354 Field boundary to East of Millfield
Farm

T6 Oak 401070-266350 Field boundary to East of Millfield
Farm .

T7 Oak 401025-266348 Field boundary to East of Milifield
Farm

T8 Oak 400950-266346 Field boundary to East of
MillfieldFarm

T9 Field maple 400966-266342 Field boundary to East of Millfield
Farm

T10 Oak 400946-266341 Field boundary to East of Millfield
Farm

1 Oak 401015-266372 Field boundary to East of
MillfieldFarm

T12 Oak 400952-266372 Field boundary to East of
MillfieldFarm

T13 Oak 400981-266187 On boundary of Pumphouse Lane
to East of Millfield Farm

T14 Oak 400952-266197 On boundary of Pumphouse Lane
to East of Millfield Farm

T15 Dak 400859-266216 In ground to front Milifield Farm.

T16 Oak 400449-266033 in hedge line boundary
Pumphouse Lane by ford

T17 Oak 401096-266391 In field to East side Millfield Farm

Page 10



T18

T19

T20

T21

T22

T23

T24

T25

T26

T27

T28

T29

T30

T31

132

T33

T34

T35

T36

Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Qak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak
Oak

Qak

400768-266440
400769-266473
400773-266488
400777-266503
400777-266513
400781-266527
400786-266558
400791-266580
400810-266624
400909-266401
400923-266429
400930-266456
400943-266536
400939-266500
400930-266527
400956-266589
400944-266614
400909-266619

400871-266621

Page 11

Agenda Iltem 5

Field boundary
Milifield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Milifield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Milifield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Milifield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Millfield Farm

Field boundary
Milifield Farm

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

fo

to

to

to

to

to

to

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

North

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of



T37

T38

T39

T40

T41

T42

T43
T44
T45
T46
T47
T48
T49
T50

T51

152

T53

T54

TS5

T56

157

T58

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Qak

Qak

Ash

Holly

Qak

Field Maple
Oak

Oak
Sycamore
Oak

Oak

QOak

Ash

Qak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

400826-266625
400881-266749
400892-266686
400991-266669
401116-266769
400813-266749

401294-266821
401241-266842
401185-266873
401020-266931
400983-266971
400852-267015
400729-267303
400443-267568

401073-267097

401029-267152

401219-267054
401229-267085
401385-267316
401242-267365
400931-267225

401076-267292

Page 12

Agenda Iltem 5

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to South of
Pumping Station by stream

Field boundary to South / Eastern
side of Pumping Station

Field boundary to South / Eastern
side of Pumping Station

Field boundary to South-East of
Pumping Station

Field boundary to South of
Pumping Station by stream

Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane

Midfield to North Curr Lane

Midfield to North Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane

Midfield to East of Peplars Hill
Farm

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane



T59

T60

761

162
T63

T64

T65

T66

T67

T68

169

T70
T71

T2

T73

174

T75

176

T77

T78

Qak

Lime

Oak

QOak
Oak

Oak

Qak

Oak

Ash

Oak

Ash

Oak
Oak

Qak

Alder

Oak

Qak

Qak

Ash

Oak

401020-267229
400944-267443
400908-267443

400448-267950
400449-268044

400629-268052
400663-268038
400696-268026
400770-267999
401417-267483
401399-267464

401380-267638
401326-267628

400985-266965
401229-267064

400861-266726

400860-266719
401163-266713

400789-266609

400788-266618

Page 13

Agenda Iltem 5

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane

Field Line boundary to North Curr
Lane

Boundary of Gypsy Lane
Boundary of Gypsy Lane

Field boundary to East Gypsy
Lane

Field boundary to East Gypsy
Lane

Field boundary to East Gypsy
Lane

Field boundary to East Gypsy
Lane

Field boundary to South of
Bromsgrove Highway

Field boundary to South of
Bromsgrove Highway

Boundary of drive to Hunters Hill
Boundary of drive to Hunters Hill

Boundary of Curr Lane opposite
pumping station

Midfield to North of Curr Lane by
Stream.

Field Boundary South of pumping
station by stream/ pool.

Field Boundary South of pumping
station by stream/ pool.

Midfield rear of Blockley Close.

Field Boundary North of Millfield
Farm by stream{ pool.

Field Boundary North of Mill Field
Farm by stream / pool.



Agenda Iltem 5

T79 Oak 400958-266597 Field boundary South- East of
pumping station.
T80 Oak 400903-266369 Field boundary North of Millfield
Farm.
T81 Qak 400919-266263 Field boundary East of Millfield
Farm.
T82 Oak 400920-266240 Field boundary East of Milifield
Farm.
T83 Ash 401264-266841 Boundary of Curr Lane
T84 Oak 400931-267456 Boundary of access track to
North-East of Peplars Farm
T85 Oak 400492-268083 East of Gypsy Lane on boundary
of access track.
T86 Oak 400941-266674 Field boundary to South / Eastern
side of Pumping Station
Trees specified by reference to an area
(within a dotted black line on the map)
No. on Map Description NGR Situation
NONE
Groups of Trees
(within a broken black line on the map)
No. on Map Description NGR Situation
G1 Mixed Species 401616-267163 Opposite 21-41 Foxlydiate
Oak, Ash, Elm l.ane
Lime, Sycamore
Hawthorn

All trees within Group
With a stem diameter
Above 100mm at
Ground level.

Page 14



G2

G3

G4

G5

G6

G7

G8

G3S

G10

G11

Mixed Species 401491-266966
Oak, Alder, Ash

Elm, Sorbus

Hawthorn

All trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Ground level.

Mixed Species 401446-266924
Qak, Pine, Ash

Elm, Sycamore,

Hawthorn

All trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Ground level.

Mixed Species 401143-266234
12 x Oak
2 x Ash

Mixed Species 400420-266075
Alder, Willow

Hawthorn, Oak

All trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Ground level.

5 x Oak around 400843-266321
Small pool

Mixed Species 400821-266361

10 x Oak
1 x Ash

3 x Field Maple 400790-266603

2 x0ak & 400862-266706
9 x Field Maple
Mixed Species 400576-266394

Alder, Ash, Willow
Oak, Hawthorn

All trees within Group
With a stem diameter
Above 100mm at
Ground level.

2 x Oaks 400969-267000

Page 15

Agenda Iltem 5

Opposite 63 Foxlydiate
Lane

Opposite side 2
Grazing Lane

Boundary of
Pumphouse Lane

Boundary of ford
off Pumphouse Lane

Rear Millfield Farm

Rear Millfield Farm
running West

linier feature In hedge
line boundary

Field boundary to
North of Millfield Farm

Field boundary to
South East of
pumping station

Linier feature of trees
along stream line of
Spring Brook running
North to South.

Boundary of Curr Lane



Agenda Iltem 5

G12 Mixed Species 400969-267000 Field Line boundary to
Willow North Curr Lane
Lime, Alder, Ash Group by stream
Sycamore
Hawthorn

All trees within Group
With a stem diameter
Above 100mm at
Ground level.

G13 Mixed Species 401352-267101 Field boundary to
Group on water North Curr Lane
Course, Willow, Group by stream
Ash, Poplar,
Hawthorn

All trees within Group
With a stem diameter
Above 100mm at

Ground level.
G14 Mixed Species 400562-268090 Spinney to East of Gypsy
Oak, Ash, Pine Lane

Spinney of trees
All trees within Group
With a stem diameter
Above 100mm at

Ground level.
G15 6 x Oak 401052-266612 Field boundary
North - East of
Millfield Farm
G16 2 xAsh 401097-267455 Field boundary North of
W1

Woodlands
(within a continuous black line on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

W1 Woodland Area 401212-267254 North Curr Lane
Oak, Sycamore
Lime, Aspen
Chesnut, Larch,
Beech

Page 16



Agenda Item 5

. . .
N/, Peplars Hill
A N ™ :
Peplars Hill\l /™
.ﬁ/ JFam [ RS O8N
\\\ g 4 o~ ,A\f. 5
Lo 1 1 RSN
« # Retreat, LT Sy ‘
v,/u.w 8 o ra Qﬁ\ B,
oateswood /. /) \ e
el ey e
) ] \‘ X
54 [ /
Y . { Vi
e W ; y
~ Wi j
.z// .,_ \\ _/ H
B Iy ) { -
1N
N S f i
..f/.{/ qx.\\ i
" ,// 1 ‘.. ‘“. /
—— .:ffl/./, ﬁ(\ H..: / \
Sy / £
A “""ETTD
wm“_ O i
s -~
L~ ,n..\\ a
Vi ~
\\\..
i
s Project.
b e vt
-y — o :
!fmmﬁn_w/é . Bromsgrove District Council
~ TPO (2) 2017
p S
—~
o
Drawing:
& Foxlydiate ADR Land
#75" §
s
13y
s I
B ,
.-,_..rq Drawn: PTL | Scale: 1/6000@ A3
il
! r.n Surveyed: 05 | Date: Mar 2017
fool
LN \d .
£ .}.\ Drawing No: P2184/23
v 4 )
g L, - me—®
L R S i O Engineering and Design Services
L ~y - Town Hall
L) k
o* na? { Walter Stranz Square
e / Redditch
S \ Worcs B8 8AH
'y
-ss c,hﬁ /.\ e
;e
A / - REDDITCH BOR0UCH COUnCIL
o o T SN
Vs / ) T 2
P -
E R o .
. ,
W
o\ \
7 [ & = Raglis ‘ﬂ 2 \
\\\\\ - o Cottage \__/ i
s\w i) ag % www.redditchbe.gov.uk
I i /
[} ¥ ~) s i X,
[ e AN N )
et =N\ Y Bromsgrove
27NN District Council
A g \ Istrict Counci
LY / " www.bromsgrove.gov.uk
,,., \\\M_u/ : \\||V/
- A P, S ComrLun e e 21
\ .\ Z

PP RISED SicpoAToRM ¢ K Wrnu‘F.((Of\V 1S ALl Do}




This page is intentionally left blank



A?pmdnx 2

Firs hedule

Agenda Iltem 5

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

No. on Map Description
T Lime

T2 Lime

T3 Oak

T4 Oak

T5 Oak

T6 Oak

T7 Oak

T8 Oak

T9 Field maple
T10 Oak

T11 Oak

T12 Oak

T13 Oak

T14 Oak

NGR

401670-267249
401568-267075
401100-266612

401139-266359

401100-266354

401070-266350

401025-266348

400990-266346

400966-266342

400946-266341

401015-266372

400952-266372

400981-266187

400952-266197

Page 19

Situation

In grounds of Foxlydiate Farm
Side of Springhill Cottage
Boundary of Reed Beds

Field boundary to East of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to East of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to East of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to East of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to East of
MillfieldFarm

Field boundary to East of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to East of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to East of
MillfieldFarm

Field boundary to East of
MillfieldFarm

On boundary of Pumphouse
Lane to East of Millfield Farm

On boundary of Pumphouse
Lane to East of Millfield Farm



T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

T20

T21

T22

T23

T24

T25

T26

T27

T28

T29

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

400859-266216

400449-266033

401096-266391

400768-266440

400769-266473

400773-266488

400777-266503

400777-266513

400781-266527

400786-266558

400791-266580

400810-266624

400909-266401

400923-266429

400930-266456

Page 20

Agenda Iltem 5

In ground to front Millfield
Farm.

In hedge line boundary
Pumphouse Lane by ford

In field to East side Millfield
Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm



T30

T31

T32

T33

T34

T35

T36

T37

T38

T39

T40

T41

T42

T43

T44

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Ash

Oak

400943-266536

400939-266500

400930-266527

400956-266589

400944-266614

400909-266619

400871-266621

400826-266625

400881-266749

400892-266686

400991-266669

401116-266769

400813-266749

401294-266821

401095-266612

Page 21

Agenda Iltem 5

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to North of
Millfield Farm

Field boundary to South of
Pumping Station by stream

Field boundary to South /

Eastern side of Pumping
Station

Field boundary to South /
Eastern side of Pumping
Station

Field boundary to South-East
of Pumping Station

Field boundary to South of
Pumping Station by stream

Boundary Curr Lane

Boundary of Reed Beds



T45
T46
T47
T48
T49
T50

T51

T52

T53

T54

T55

T56

T57

T58

T59

T60

T61

T62

Oak

Field Maple
Oak

Oak
Sycamore
Oak

Oak

Oak

Ash

Oak

Oak

Oak

QOak

Oak

Oak

Lime

Oak

Oak

401185-266873
401020-266931
400983-266971
400952-267015
400729-267303
400443-267568

401073-267097

401029-267152

401219-267054

401229-267085

401385-267316

401242-267365

400931-267225

401076-267292

401020-267229

400944-267443

400908-267443

400448-267950

Page 22

Agenda Iltem 5

Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane
Boundary Curr Lane

Midfield to North Curr Lane

Midfield to North Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Midfield to East of Peplars Hill
Farm

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to North
Curr Lane

Boundary of Gypsy Lane



T63

T64

T65

T66

T67

T68

T69

T70

T71

T72

T3

T74

T75

T76

T77

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Ash

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Alder

Oak

Oak

Oak

Ash

400449-268044

401063-266611

400663-268038

400696-268026

400770-267999

401417-267483

401035-266611

401380-267638

401326-267628

400985-266965

401229-267064

400861-266726

400860-266719

401163-266713

400789-266609

Page 23

Agenda Iltem 5

Boundary of Gypsy Lane

Boundary of Reed Beds

Field boundary to East Gypsy
Lane

Field boundary to East Gypsy
Lane

Field boundary to East Gypsy
Lane

Field boundary to South of
Bromsgrove Highway

Boundary of Reed Beds

Boundary of drive to Hunters
Hill

Boundary of drive to Hunters
Hill

Boundary of Curr Lane
opposite pumping station

Midfield to North of Curr Lane
by Stream.

Field Boundary South of
pumping station by stream /
pool.

Field Boundary South of
pumping station by stream /
pool.

Midfield rear of Blockley
Close.

Field Boundary North of
Millfield Farm by stream /
pool.



Agenda Iltem 5

T78 Oak 400788-266618 Field Boundary North of Mill
Field Farm by stream / pool.

T79 Oak 400958-266597 Field boundary South- East of
pumping station.

T80 Oak 400903-266369 Field boundary North of
Millfield Farm.

T81 Oak 400919-266263 Field boundary East of
Millfield Farm.

T82 Oak 400920-266240 Field boundary East of
Millfield Farm.

T83 Ash 401264-266841 Boundary of Curr Lane

T84 Oak 400931-267456 Boundary of access track to
North-East of Peplars Farm

T85 Oak 400492-268083 East of Gypsy Lane on
boundary of access track.

T86 Oak 400941-266674 Field boundary to South /
Eastern side of Pumping
Station

T87 Oak 401010-266610 West of reed beds

T88 Oak 400997-266610 West of reed beds

Trees specified by reference to an area
(within a dotted black line on the map)
No.on Map Description NGR Situation

NONE

Page 24



Groups of Trees

Agenda Iltem 5

(within a broken black line on the map)

No.on Map Description NGR

G1

G2

G3

G4

Mixed Species

1 x Oak, 23x Ash,
3 x EIm, 1 x Cherry

14 x Lime, 22 x Sycamore
2 x Hawthorn 1 x Chestnut
trees within Group

With a stem diameter
Above 100mm at

Ground level.

Mixed Species  401491-266966
4 x Oak, 1 x Alder,

1 x Holly, 4 x Birch

10 x Ash, 2 x Sorbus

2 x Hawthorn, 2 x Cherry

2 x Field Maple, 6 x Chestnut
1 x Alder, 2 x Lime

trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Ground level.

Mixed Species  401446-266924
1 x Oak, 1 x Holly,

11 x Ash

4 x Elm, 1 x Sycamore

trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Ground level.

Mixed Species  401143-266234
12 x Oak
2 x Ash

Page 25

401616-267163

Situation

Opposite 21-41 Foxlydiate
Lane

Opposite 63 Foxlydiate
Lane

Opposite side 2
Grazing Lane

Boundary of
Pumphouse Lane



G5

G6

G7

G8

G9

G10

G11

G12

Mixed Species 400420-266075
53 x Alder, 1 x Willow

1 x Hawthorn, 1 x Oak

4 x Field Maple, 2 x Ash

11 x Hazel

trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at
Ground level.

5 x Oak around 400843-266321
Small pool

Mixed Species  400821-266361

10 x Oak

1 x Ash
3 x Field Maple  400790-266603
2 xOak & 400862-266706
9 x Field Maple

Mixed Species 400576-266394
140 x Alder,30 x Ash,

4 x Oak, 15 x Hawthorn

26 x Field Maple, 17 x Hazel

10 x Willow

trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Ground level.

2 x Oaks 400969-267000

Mixed Species 401063-267018
7 x Willow, 1 x Oak

1 x Field Maple

12 x Lime, 27 x Alder,

2 x Ash, 16 x Sycamore

6 x Hawthorn, 2 x Hazel

1 x Birch

trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Page 26

Agenda Iltem 5

Boundary of ford
off Pumphouse Lane

Rear Millfield Farm

Rear Millfield Farm
running West
linier feature In hedge
line boundary

Field boundary to

North of Millfield Farm

Field boundary to
South East of
pumping station

Linier feature of trees
along stream line of
Spring Brook running
North to South.

Boundary of Curr Lane

Field Line boundary to
North Curr Lane
Group by stream



G13

G14

G15

G16

No. on Map

Ground level.
Mixed Species 401352-267101
Group on water

Course,6 x Willow,

11 x Ash, 4 x Poplar,

1 x Hawthorn, 3 x Sycamore

35 x Douglas Fir

trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at

Ground level.
Mixed Species 400562-268090
20 x Oak, 3 x Ash,

8 x Pine, 1 x Field Maple

Spinney of trees

trees within Group

With a stem diameter

Above 100mm at
Ground level.
Mixed Species 401137-267052

45 x Sycamore,

6 x Alder, 2 x Ash,

4 x Hazel, 5 x Lime,

2 x Field Maple, 2 x Willow

2 xAsh 401097-267455

Woodlands

Agenda Iltem 5

Field boundary to
North Curr Lane
Group by stream

Spinney to East of Gypsy
Lane

Field Line boundary to
North Curr Lane
Group by stream

Field boundary North of
w1

(within a continuous black line on the map)

Description NGR

W1

Woodland Area  401212-267254
Oak, Sycamore

Lime, Aspen

Chesnut, Larch,

Beech

Page 27

Situation

North Curr Lane



This page is intentionally left blank



Agpnda ltem B

- )|
0l
N
el

v’

20100 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 metres
e P e T =

03/08/2017 A Minor and scale bar added

Date Rev Details

Project:
Hennals Wood

Bromsgrove District Council
TPO (2) 2017

Drawing:

Foxlydiate ADR Land

Drawn: PTL Scale: 1/6,000 @ A3

Surveyed: os Date: Mar 2017

Drawing No: P2184/23A

Engineering and Design Services

Town Hall
Walter Stranz Square
Redditch
Worcs B98 8AH

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL
=20

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2017
Ordnance Survey 100024252




This page is intentionally left blank



e Agenda Item 5

Wardell Armstrong

wardell
armstrong

Our ref: ST14523/MS/AM/ARBOO1 Date: 20" April 2017
Digital ref:
Your ref:

FAO - Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services
Bromsgrove District Council

Parkside

Market Street

Bromsgrove

Worcestershire

B61 8DA

Dear Sir / Madam,

Re: The Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (2) 2017 - Trees on Land at Foxlydiate
ADR Land

We refer to the above Tree Preservation Order, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) and by way
of this letter we object to the Order on behalf of The Applicant and respectfully request that the
Order is not confirmed. This detailed objection is in accordance with Regulation 6(1) of the Town and
Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012.

This Order has been served on a site that is subject to a live hybrid planning application (Ref:
16/0263), which was validated on 21 March 2016. Since then several statutory and non-statutory
consultees have commented on the application, to which a number of meetings have taken place
and formal responses been prepared. It should also be noted that at the time of submission the site
was subject to a draft allocation, as the Bromsgrove District Council’s emerging District Plan had not
been adopted. This District Plan has since been adopted (25" January 2017) and the site has been
allocated under planning policy ‘RCBD1 Redditch Cross Boundary Development’. This adopted policy
confirms, the site will provide up to 2,800 homes and will help Redditch Borough Council meet its
housing requirement of 6,380 dwellings by the year 2030. Furthermore, pre-application discussions
have been held with Council on a number of occasions, the first of which was undertaken on the 23"
April 2015. As such we consider it wholly unreasonable to serve this Order (for 86 individual trees, 16
Groups and one Woodland) or any other TPO on the site at this late stage in the planning process.

Since March 2016 the design of the site has evolved as a result of these statutory responses. As part
of the hybrid planning application submission, Land Use Masterplan Option 10 Revision H was
provided. Since then a significant amount of consultation with statutory consultees has taken place,
resulting in minor amendments being made to the Land Use Masterplan. As part of this consultation
it was agreed that addendums to the Environmental Statement and the Drainage Strategy and Flood
Risk Assessment, alongside an amended Land Use Masterplan and Parameter Plans would be
produced and submitted. We anticipate these revised plans will be submitted in May 2017.
Therefore, we reserve the right to comment further at a later stage.

; | g, ENERGY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
LAES | | femy

Hopmd [ AR (0T ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY

e INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES

LAND AND PROPERTY

Wardell Armstrong is the trading hame of Wardell Armstrong LLP, Registered in England No. 0C307138.
MINING AND MINERAL PROCESSING

MINERAL ESTATES AND QUARRYING
UK Offices: Stoke-on-Trent, Birmingham, Cardiff, Carlisle, Edinburgh, Greater Manchester, London, Newcastle upon Tyne,
Penryn, Sheffield, Truro, West Bromwich. International Offices: Aimaty, Moscow WASTE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Registered office: Sir Henry Doulton House, Forge Lane, Etruria, Stoke-on-Trent, 5T1 5BD, United Kingdom

Page 31



Agenda Iltem 5

Therefore, we object to the Order on the following grounds:

1. The Council has protected trees that are not worthy of protection.
There are drafting errors in the Order; and

3. The Council has protected trees that would have to be removed to enable the proposed
access routes into and through the site to be constructed if planning permission is granted
for application ref: 16/0263.

1. The Council has protected trees that are not worthy of protection

A tree survey was undertaken by an arboriculturist from ‘Outline Trees Arboricultural Consultancy’ in
2014, which was subsequently submitted to the Council as part of an Environmental Statement
(Appendix 1: British Standards 5837:2012 Tree Survey & Tree Constraints Plan (2014) of the
Arboricultural Method Statement, Volume 2) in support of Planning Application Ref. 16/0263. This
tree survey data has been cross referenced with the trees protected by the Order. This has found
twenty-six individual trees (T2, T3, T4, T6, T7, T12, T16, T17, T24, T25, T27, T31, T32, T34, T37, T40,
T41, T58, T60, T62, T69, T74, T76, T77, T78, T86) and four trees groups (G8, G9, G15, G16)
categorised as ‘C’ quality by the ‘Outline Trees Arboricultural Consultancy’ tree survey report have
been protected by the Order. It has also been found that five individual trees (T22, T64, T67, T79,
T80), which were categorised as ‘U’ quality by the ‘Outline Trees Arboricultural Consultancy’ tree
survey report, have also been protected by the Order.

These trees were surveyed by an arboriculturist in accordance with the standards set out in British
Standard 5837:2012 — Trees in relation to demolition and construction. This British Standard refers
to category ‘C’ trees as ‘Trees of low quality’, whilst the standard refers to category ‘U’ tree as ‘those
in such a condition that they cannot realistically be retained as living trees in the context of the
current land use for longer than 10 years’.

We contend that trees of lower quality, i.e. category ‘C’ trees and those that are in such poor or
health or condition that they cannot be expected to safely be retained for longer than ten years i.e.
category ‘U’, are not suitable for protection by Tree Preservation Order. To reiterate we believe that
trees which are in a potentially dangerous condition, where Section 14(1)(C) exemption from the
2012 Regulations would be applicable, should not be protected by the Order. This includes trees T22,
T64, T67, T79, T80 referred to in the Order’s First Schedule.

To conclude, we respectfully request that the Council gives serious consideration to the grounds of
objection as set out in this letter and after consideration of the legal matters pertaining to the
drafting errors and the issues surrounding the protection of average and/or lower quality trees
(category ‘C’ trees) and trees with structural problems that may lead to their collapse (category ‘U’
trees), does not confirm ‘The Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (2) 2017'.

2. Drafting Errors in the Order

The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 states in section 3.3
that ‘The map contained in, or annexed to, an order shall be prepared to a scale sufficient to give a
clear indication of the position of the trees, groups of trees or woodlands to which the order relates’.

The scale used on the Order’s Map is shown as 1:6,000 @ A3. This is not a recognisable metric scale
and as such does not allow distances to be measured on the plan using a scale ruler. Having a scale
bar on the TPO Map would overcome this scaling incompatibility problem, however a scale bar is not
included on the Map. This means that the locations of trees cannot be readily ascertained by

ST14523/MS/AM/ARBOO1 2 Date 20" April 2017

Page 32



Agenda Iltem 5

measuring distances to the trees from fixed points on-site. Where protected trees are located
adjacent to non-protected trees it would be almost impossible to locate that tree, by scaling from
the Map in the Order. For example, two ash trees listed as T2 and T3 in the first schedule of the
Order are located in a linear group of trees on-site. This group of trees contains a number of trees
including other ash trees. Being unable to scale from the map means that the locations of these
trees cannot be ascertained and because there are other ash trees in the group, it is virtually
impossible to locate trees T2 and T3 properly on-site by using the Order’s Map.

The location on the TPO Map for tree T76 appears to be wrong compared to its true location on-site.
The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 states in section 3.4
that ‘In the case of any discrepancy between the map contained in, or annexed to, an order and the
specification contained in the Schedule to that order, the map shall prevail’. Thus where there are
discrepancies on the location of a tree protected by the Order, the location shown on the Map is
definitive. As the location shown on the Order’s Map for tree T76 is wrong, the legal protection by
the Order for this tree is ambiguous.

It appears that the group outline on the map for Group G15 excludes the most westerly oak tree in
the group, however as it is impossible to scale from the map, its location on site cannot be
ascertained, putting into question whether this tree is actually protected by the Order.

Another problem with the Order’s Map is that, at the size the Map should be printed out at, which is
A3, details on the map are hard to make out the locations and reference numbers of trees that are
supposed to be protected by the Order. The small size of the typeface and plotting symbols for both
individual and groups of trees makes reading the Map extremely difficult. Additionally, a number of
the trees that are supposed to be protected by the Order, have their reference numbers on the Map
obscured by other features. Good practice dictates that a Map attached to a legal document such as
a TPO Map must be legible, however for a small number of trees shown on the Map their reference
numbers are actually illegible.

The errors mentioned above regarding the TPO Map is contrary to Section 3.3 of the Town and
Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 because the Map does not give a
clear indication of the position of the trees, groups of trees or woodlands to which the Order relates.

The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 states that:

“3.—(1) An order shall be in the form set out in the Schedule to these Regulations or in a form
substantially to the same effect and—

(a) shall specify the trees, groups of trees or woodlands to which it relates;

(b) where the order relates to a group of trees, shall specify the number of trees of each species in the

o

rou

The number of trees for each tree species referred to in the Order’s First Schedule for Groups as G1,
G2, G3, G5, G10, G12, G13, G14, is not stated in the First Schedule for these Groups. The relevant
clause in the 2012 regulations is underlined above and it clearly states that number of trees, of each
species must be listed in the Order. This is an error and as such invalidates the protection given by
the Order for these Groups.

For the reasons given above it is considered that the Order and Map are flawed due to drafting
errors and as a result the Order does not comply with the 2012 regulations. Therefore, we
respectfully suggest that the Order cannot be legally confirmed by the Council.

$T14523/MS/AM/ARBOOL 3 Date 20" April 2017

Page 33



Agenda Iltem 5

3. The Council has protected trees that would require removal to enable the proposed main access
routes into and through the site to be constructed if planning permission is granted for application

ref: 16/0263.

Trees that would require removal to enable the construction of the main proposed access routes
into and through the site for planning application ref: 16/0263 have been protected by the Order,
including a small section from the southern end of group G1, a small section from the western end of
group G15, a small section from the eastern end of group G7, a small section from the southern and
south-western end sections of G4, a middle section of G12 and individual trees T3, T17, T18, T35,
T40, T44, T68, T65, T68, T69, T82.

The Local Planning Authority (LPA) are aware of the main proposed access routes into and through
the site for the planning application, which makes the protection of these aforementioned trees,
somewhat perplexing. If full planning permission is granted for the access routes into and through
the site, this would override the Order and thus the directly impacted trees could then be removed,
which would then leave the protection by the Order on these specific trees, superfluous. This would
result in the Order having to be reviewed by the LPA in the future to remove the trees lost to the
development, in order to maintain the accuracy of the Order.

Therefore we object to the Order, as it protects trees that would require removal to enable the
proposed main access routes into and through the site to be constructed, if planning permission is
granted for planning application ref: 16/0263.

Please acknowledge this objection and address the acknowledgement and any other
correspondence in the matter of the objection and this order to Mr Stuart Field at Planning
Development & Regeneration GVA, 3 Brindleyplace, Birmingham B1 2JB.

Yours sincerely
for Wardell Armstrong LLP

Meval] Sumpson

Moray Simpson
msimpson@wardell-armstrong.com

ST14523/MS/AM/ARBOO1 4 Date 20" April 2017

Page 34



5

)

Agend

BRITISH STANDARD

anjea [BANND
13410 1O UDI1BAISSUOD

syjauaq adedspue| juasuelyAieiodwal

Auo o mo| Builayo seal} Jo/pue ‘anjea
adedspue| aA323|[02 131216 Appuedipubls
way) uo BulIauod sy} INOUM

wu g5t

Mmojag 1e1awelp Wsls B

ulm saauy bunoh Jo sieaf 0t
1503] 18 10 Aoueadxs

ajl} Bujuleulal palewlilss

b A
saiiobared saubiy i Ayienb jou op Aayy ypm Aaijenb moj 4o s394

1ey1 uoipuod padieduwl Yons Jo LS

© The British Standards Institution 2012 « 9

Z sjgel 93§ [BLIB1EW OU UUM 53311 INQ 'SPUB|POOM 10 sdnoasb uj ussaid salL paliwi| AI9A 3O $991) B|gEMYIBLRIUN 5 ficbsye)
uoneubisap v Alobaied
ayl 1uew 03 Auessadau Aujenb jepads
ay1 buppe| 224} 10 'sjeak o puoksq
10} UOIUB)3) IO} B|GEUNS 3] O} K@xyun
aJie Ayl 1yl Yons ‘(abewep WI01s
Ayijeoo) 1apim a4l 031 UQIINGIIIU0D [BNSIA pue juswabeuew 1sed onayeduwAsun i
2]111] @)W 01 58 05 PIIBNUS ING SBAI10]|02 Buipnpul ‘sp2jap 2(qeipasl X ﬂamm 0¢
se BulIN220 $921) 10 S|ENPIAIpUI 5B 1B ybnoyy uediubls Jo souasasd 5 I i xm_wt_
anjea jeanynd  Aayl ueyy Buies aa1pa(j0d Jaybiy e peme * -B'a) uoipuod pasedul JO 3sNEIRG :_Mmﬁw_“ UmwmmE_wmm ue ym
J9Y10 JO UOIBAIISUOD A3y} 1241 Yons ‘SPUB|pOOM IO sdnouib se papesbumop aie Ing v Aobajed jjenb 2125p0Ul 0 S934L
7 2|qei 99s [ELIB1BWL YHIM S334L Buimolb Ajjensn ‘sizquinu Ul juasald s8dil u| papnpul 2q 1yBiw 1Byl 58941 g fJobaied
: (9NUSBAE UB UIYUM 53313 jedpund
10/pue JURUIWOP 24} *B-a) s2IN1ea} <1eak
(24n3sed-poom 10 s331) |BAN}NDLIOGIE [BLWIOJ-IWIRS JO [BUIO . . G maow
uelaian "H'a) anjeA 1BYio 10 sdnoib Jo syuauodwod |B1IUSsSd , Mw,c«mmwh meu xw To}
10 BAIIBIOLISWIWOD |2dLI0ISIY sainiea} adeispue| a4 eyl 2SOy} 10 ljensnun Jo adel mwﬂ .mc_m__ b um pas Mc_.ym ™
"UOIIBAIBSUOD uedniyiubis jo  Jospue |eanyjnaliogue se asuepioduwl [BNSIA 11 Ajepadse ‘sapads 12yl JO sajduwexa e yum Ayenb ybly jo s331L n%u
7 @|qelL 23S Spue|pooM 10 sdnoub ‘saail Jejnoiped JO SpUR|pOOM 10 sdnolb 'sesll pooB Ajyenonded e 1yl saall y AioBajed I
uonueial o} pRiepisuol 3f 0} S o
uonealasuod Buipnpul
'sanjea jeanyn2 Ajulein € sapijenb adedspuej AjuieiN Z sapenb [eanynsuoqse Ajuieiy L
L5 89S
ransasaid o3 ajgeasap ag aybiw 31 yaIym anjea U0I1EAIBSUOI [eruazod Jo Bullsixd eAeY UED soa1 n Aiobaed 310N
sieah
Ayjenb 1s11eq jo sesd) wusdelpe Buissasddns saahn Aujenb E.
Moy AJan 1o ‘Agiesu se ay1o jo A1aje e 3y @ suedipubis jo suabouyred aju S99 g} J2BUo 10) ST PLIS!
| Aaan g0 "Agie a1 Jay30 Jo A1ajes Jo/pue Yy eay ay) o1 9 1HubIs 4 aboyied yum paiaajul L0 JUS1ND SY} JO X3 BYY
auIpap [|B4RA0 B|qIsIaALL pUe ‘a1eIpawwl quedlubis 4o subis Bulmoys a4e 10 Peap e 18 ssail » Ul saa11 Buiny se pauleis) 3G
(Buiunud Agq pajebiiw 2¢ 10UUR) J3}3YS uoluedwod Jo $s0j a3 'uoseal 2_mm._.wm_”mmwwo%cw.u_%mwwwwgM
1aA918yM 10} ‘assym Ba) s834 N £1063187 J12U10 O [BAOWSI J31E B|GRIAUN W03AG 1/A4 1Byl @soy) Buipnpul BIR yons W ui
Z o|geL 29§ '35de||o3 01 anp paladxa s| 550| AjJe@ J1ay3 1843 YoNs 10943p [BINPNAS ‘3|EIpAWaLIl ‘SNOLI3S B 9ARY JeYY 98] ¢ n Aobayed
) (210{ 295) UCTIURII 10} a|geunsun 8l
uejd uo

uonedIuap]

(ereudoidde 224M souoBa)edgns Buipnpul) eUSID

uoniuydp pue Alobajed

juswissasse fijenb 2313 10} LEYD apelsed 1L 21geL

Isg o 'Adop parroIIUCOUN 'ZT0T/BOYO0 gﬂgoﬂ

L St i o



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem

S}
3
>
>
N




O
=
O
=
o
e
G
@)
. <
<













Agenda Iltem 5

¢Sl

ot ayg et ipbon



Woodland W1

To)
=
)
=
o
S
c
)
o
<




Agenda Iltem 5




Agenda Iltem

S)
G
-~
o
=
T
X
Ro
sy
3}

RN

&

‘%‘ \.‘-‘n..
QRN
e [ \

N




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO.3) 2017 — Tree on land at Lyttelton Place,
Hagley.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Kit Taylor

Portfolio Holder Consulted No

Relevant Head of Service Head of Planning Services and Housing
Ward(s) Affected Hagley East

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider whether it is Expedient in the interest of
Amenity to confirm without modification Tree Preservation Order (No.3) 2017
relating to a single Lime tree on land at Lyttelton Place, Hagley.

2. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Tree Preservation Order (No.3) 2017 relating to a
tree on land at Lyttelton Place, Hagley is confirmed without
modification.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1  There are no financial implications relating to the confirmation of the TPO.

Legal Implications

3.2  The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations
2012 cover this procedure.

Service / Operational Implications

3.3  Background
The TPO was provisionally made on the 13" March 2017 (Appendix A) to

protect the tree from being felled. Calls had been received from residents of
Lyttelton Place who had received a letter from Bromsgrove District Housing
Trust - the owner of the land where the tree is situated — informing them that
the tree was to be felled on the following day. The reasons given for the felling
were that the tree was causing damage to the tarmac surface and the felling
was necessary to enable resurfacing works to take place. The quality of the
tree was already known to BDC Tree Officers and, given the imminent threat

Page 47



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

to the tree, it was considered Expedient to make a TPO as a matter of
urgency.

3.4  The Tree is a mature Common Lime which is located in the centre of the
crossroads of the private access road serving Lyttelton Place. It is understood
to have been planted as a feature tree in this location when the development
was originally built in 1919 and has survived since this time.

3.5 In more recent history, this tree has been well known to the Tree Section, as
the land and tree were in Council ownership until transfer of the land to
Bromsgrove District Housing Trust (BDHT) in 2004 and has been viewed by
BDC Tree Officers on at least three occasions since then - either as part of
routine inspections done for BDHT and discussions or advice over resurfacing
of the roadway. During those inspections, the tree has been consistently
found to be in good health requiring little or no work and no damage appeared
to have been caused to the road surface..

3.6  The state of the roadway has been in question throughout this time but does
not appear to be the result of damage by the tree. The condition is most
consistent with the natural wear of the tarmac over time, destabilisation of the
hardcore base which increased surface damage and only minimal repair
patching. Shortly prior to the transfer to BDHT, discussions were held
between Council officers from Trees & Housing and, at that time, it was
proposed to carry out resurfacing around the tree with a ‘geoblock’ porous cell
system as used around a number of Council owned trees elsewhere to
provide a sound long lasting road surface while still allowing air, water &
nutrients to reach the root system to help keep the tree healthy.

The housing transfer prevented this work being carried out by BDC though it
was again recommended at subsequent similar meetings between BDC Tree
Officers and BDHT housing staff in 2006 and 2010.

3.7  Despite the suggestions of the letter received by residents, the condition of
the roadway does not appear to the result of damage by the tree or its roots. It
appears that, originally, a ‘collar’ of cobbles was laid in a circle around the tree
and some of these have been displaced by the growth of the trunk but no
other damage attributable to the tree is evident. All other damage to the road
surface appears to be the consequence of the other factors as described
above.

Representations

3.8 One formal letter of objection to the TPO and one email supporting the TPO
have been received from residents in Lyttelton Place. Two verbal
communications of support were also received from residents of properties
immediately adjacent to the tree but who wished to remain anonymous. The
points raised in these representations are discussed below:

Page 48



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

Objection (Appendix B)
The tree has no special amenity value

— The TEMPO assessment of the trees amenity value gives the tree a score
of 21 out of a possible 25 points. The breakdown of these is detailed
below.

A hazard, maintenance issues, telephone cables & fallen branches

- No evidence has been provided that the tree is in a hazardous condition.
The tree is in good physiological condition and no structural defects were
observed.

- Access to the tree is good, thus facilitating maintenance should it be
required.

- No specific details of the fallen branches have been provided. Some
natural loss of limbs upto 50mm diameter would be expected as a result of
natural shading or storm damage but this would be small or infrequent with
little ability to cause damage or injury. More major defects can typically be
identified by routine inspection and dealt with as required and it is
understood that BDHT do already have such routine inspections carried
out though there is no evidence of any work being required or carried out
in recent years.

- Given the size and age of the tree, the telephone cables appear to have
been deliberately run through the tree canopy in full knowledge and
acceptance of the risk of damage. Any repair or relocation of cables will
therefore be the responsibility of the telephone company. All the cable run
off a single telephone pole which appears to be due for replacement.
Relocation of this pole and/or the addition of a 2™ pole would enable all
telephone cables to be located away from the tree.

Damage to road surface — as discussed above, this does not appear to be the
result of tree root action nor does retaining the tree prevent repair of the road
surface.

Road narrowing and obstruction to traffic. — away from the ‘crossroads’ where
the tree is located, Lyttelton Place is already a ‘T’ shaped narrow single width
unclassified road unsuitable to large or long vehicles. The tree undoubtedly
forms an obstacle to movement of such vehicles but the narrowness of the
roadway is also exacerbated by encroachment of neighbouring hedges by
upto 1m into the roadway and the lack of turning heads at the ends of the ‘T’.
During site visits, two residents commented that they welcomed the retention
of the tree as it helped protect them by discouraging or slowing large or fast
traffic driving past their properties. Even disregarding the tree, the crossroads
is a tight turn with poor visibility because of the overgrown hedgerows. It is
considered that removal of the tree will not significantly improve this situation.

Page 49



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

3.9 Email in support (Appendix C)

- significant feature & focal point of the close

- home to wildlife

- large feature tree providing visual & aural benefit

- loss would impact negatively on landscape and wellbeing of local residents
- tree is not causing damage or is in a dangerous condition.

Amenity Assessment

3.10 The TEMPO Assessment (Appendix D) gives the tree a conservative score of
21 out of a possible 25 points broken down as follows:

Amenity

- Condition - 3/5 - Fair — The tree is in good physiological condition and
no structural defects could be observed.

- Longevity —4 /5 - 40 - 100 years remaining life expectancy

- Visibility — 4 / 5 — Medium size tree clearly visible locally.

- Other factors — 5/ 5 — Tree of good form and a principal historic focal
feature of Lyttelton Place.

Expediency

5/ 5 — Known threat to tree — without the TPO, the owner intends to fell the
tree or may carry out works to roadway in a manner which causes damage to
the root system.

The provisional TPO expires on 13" September 2017.
Notification of the Order was given to all persons in the surrounding area and
to all those who could be affected by the making of the TPO.

1 Objections has been received in respect of the TPO
1 formal & 2 verbal representations were received in support of the TPO.

Policy Implications

3.11 Policy Implications - None
Council Objective 4 - Environment, Priority C04 Planning

3.12 Climate Change / Carbon/ Biodiversity- The Proposal in relation to confirming
the TPO can only be seen as a positive impact on the environment.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.13 The customers have been provided with the relevant notification and the
responses received are attached in the appendices. The customers will
receive notification by post of the decision of the committee.

Page 50



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017
3.14 Equalities and Diversity implications- None
4. RISK MANAGEMENT
There are no significant risks associated with the details included in this
report.
5. APPENDICES
Appendix A — Copy of TPO
Appendix B — Objection letter
Appendix C — Email in support
Appendix D — TEMPO Amenity Assessment
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS
None
7. KEY

TPO - Tree Preservation Order

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Andrew Bucklitch
Email: andrew.bucklitch@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Tel:

(01527) 64252 x 3075

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 Appendix A

Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Tree Preservation Order (3) 2017

Bromsgrove District Council in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order—

Citation

1. This Order may be cited as Tree Preservation order (3) 2017

Interpretation

2.— (1) In this Order “the authority” means Bromsgrove District Council.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered
regulation is a reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012.

Effect

3.— (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is
made.

(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation
orders) or subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners)
and, subject to the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall—

(a) cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or

(b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,
any tree specified in the Schedule to this Order except with the written consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of State in
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject to conditions, in
accordance with those conditions.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being
a tree to be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197
(planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees),
this Order takes effect as from the time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 13" March 2017

Signed on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council

—./
aire Felton
Authorised by the Council to sign in that behalf

Page 53



Agenda Iltem 6

First Schedule

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation
T1 Lime 391297,280697 Centre of Lyttleton Place, Hagley

Trees specified by reference to an area

(within a dotted black line on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

NONE

Groups of Trees

(within a broken black line on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

NONE

Woodlands
(within a continuous black line on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

NONE

Page 54



Agenda Iltem 6

i -k ow N nM.\U 2P0 SﬁgUWU\.ﬁJ\ =R

RRCAA) PSP sroiBs WOJQ)
M pgae D IYRWNEA iy - ‘ .

vz W goayay VT 90

I Ea




Agenda Iltem 6

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO. 3) 2017
Tree on Land at Lyttleton Place
NOTICE OF MAKING

¥

The Owner and Occupier of the land

to which this Notice relates and any other
person who has an interest

THIS IS A FORMAL NOTICE to let you know that on the 13™ March 2017 the
Bromsgrove District Council (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") made an Order
under Section 198 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, entitled Bromsgrove
District Council Tree Preservation Order (No.3) 2017.

A copy of the Order is attached. In simple terms, it prohibits you from cutting down,
topping, lopping, uprooting, wilfully damaging or wilfully destroying any of the
trees/the tree specified in the First Schedule and shown on the map without the
consent of the Council.

Some explanatory guidance on Tree Preservation Orders is provided in the enclosed
leaflet, "Protected Trees: A Guide to Tree Preservation Procedures”, produced by
the Department for Communities and Local Government.

The Council's reasons for making the Order are as follows:

The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Preservation Order is made in
the interests of amenity.

The Order came into force, on a temporary basis, on 13" March 2017 and will
remain in force for six months. During this time the Council will decide whether the
Order should be given permanent status.

People affected by the Order have a right to object or make comments on the tree/on
any of the trees or woodlands included in the Order before the Council decide
whether the Order should be made permanent.

If you would like to make any objections or comments, please make sure the Council
receives them in writing by 13" April 2017. Your objections or comments must meet
Regulation 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)
Regulations 2012 (a copy is attached).

Please send your comments to the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic
Services, Bromsgrove District Council, Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61
8DA. The Council will carefully consider all objections and comments before
deciding whether to make the Order permanent.

Page 56



Agenda Iltem 6

The Council will write to you again when it has made its decision. In the meantime, if
you would like any more information or have any questions about this Notice, please
contact Mrs R Sultana, Legal Equalities and Democratic Services, Bromsgrove
District Council, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA. (Tel: 01527 881745).

Dated the 13" March 2017

Head of Legal Equalities and Democratic Services

The Council House,
Burcot Lane,
Bromsgrove,
Worcestershire,
B60 1AA.

Page 57



Agenda Iltem 6

EXTRACT FROM TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (TREE PRESERVATION)
(Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012

REGULATION 6

Objections and representations

6.—(1) Subject to paragraph (2), objections and representations—

(a) shall be made in writing and—

(i) delivered to the authority not later than the date specified by them under
regulation

5(2)(c); or

(ii) sent to the authority in a properly addressed and pre-paid letter posted at such
time

that, in the ordinary course of post, it would be delivered to them not later than that
date;

(b) shall specify the particular trees, groups of trees or woodlands (as the case may
be) in

respect of which such objections and representations are made; and

(c) in the case of an objection, shall state the reasons for the objection.

b

(2) The authority may treat as duly made objections and representations which do
not comply

with the requirements of paragraph (1) if, in the particular case, they are satisfied

that compliance
with those requirements could not reasonably have been expected.

Page 58



Agenda Item 6

Ao b

‘.yi‘mimn Place

Hagley

Stourbridge .
W

15 March 2017
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services
Bromsgrove District Councll
Parkside
Muarket Street
Bromsgrove
B61 8DA

Drear sirs/ma’ams,
RE: Tree Preservation Order No, 3, 2017: Tree on land of Lytielion Place

We would fike to kKindly contest the plans o place 3 preservation order on this tree, as of 13™ March
2017. We argue that although it does provide some amenity to the road, it does not provide ‘special
amenity value’ and it is more of 2 hazard.

This tree is large and as such is difficult to maintain. There are overhead cables passing through is
canopy and in bad weather, moderstely sized branches have fallenon to the road. The roots
themsalves may have also contributed to the poor condition of the road surface and may continue
to do so. Bromsarove District Housing Trust (BDHT) had organised esserntiat and extensive
maintenance work to the road To make it sefe. This work may cause some disturbance to the roots

of the tree, although this Is only our opinion.

The road is narrow and having been planted in the junction of the cul-de-sag, the tree isan
ohstruction. Long vehicles are not able to access properties distal {c the tree and it can be
probiematic for drivers, especially when refuge bins are feft in the road, cars meet head on or when

reversing.

in summary, we feel that this tree possesses fimited amenity value, is ditficult 1o mainteain and poses
a significant hazard and obstruction risk.

Thank you for your consideration,

Page 59




Agenda Item 6

Andrew Bucklitch

&
‘From: Andrew Bucklitch
Sent: 22 August 2017 15:25
To: Andrew Bucklitch ; 6‘\[@‘{ \{_ C/
Subject: FW: FAQO CLAIRE FELTON Ref RS/TPO(3)2017 —
/’—_-___7
From:

Sent: 12 April 2017 22:21
To: Rasma Sultana
Subject: FAQ CLAIRE FELTON Ref RS/TPO(3)2017

Dear Mrs Felton

| write in connection with the Tree Preservation Order put into place on land at Lyttelton Place, reference
RS/TPOQ(3)2017.

As a resident of Lyttelton Place | feel that the lime tree is a significant feature of the close, and provides significant visual
amenity and a natural focal point for all residents. It also offers a nesting and gathering place for rooks which
congregate there at certain times of the year.

it is the only large tree that can be seen when looking along each aspect of Lyttelton Place and due to its height provides
a striking natural feature giving some much needed colour in the Summer; my young children also enjoy listening to the
wind whistling through its branches on stormy autumn and winter nights.

| feel that the loss of the lime tree would impact negatively on the immediate landscape and wellbeing of local
residents, and [ am not aware that the tree is causing damage to property or is in a dangerous condition - therefore the
presumption should be in favour or preservation and protection.

Yours sincerely

.Lyttelton Place
Hagley




Htam
TLCC I 1

Pk |

OdL siew Apiuyeq +9}
Od.L silew Ajqissod G| —2|
OdLMewoussoq |1~/
a[qisuelepul Od L 9-1
Odl Aidde jouoq o Auy

S0UBSINU B|GEUONDE UE SE Umouy {0
Auo freuonneoseld {|

28] 0] Jealy) paapaled (2

98] 0] jealy] 8|qeeasalo] (¢

921) 0] 1B UMoUy (G

JUSWISSOSSE ASUBIpadYY 1¢ 1Med

selnjes; Bujlespal [BUO[IPPE SADOE SU} JO BUOU LRI 588l (|
[ensnun Jo a4l )| Aeloadse ‘uuoy poob Apenonsed jo sesl] (2
souelIodl BAfRIOWBWIWOD 0 [OU0ISIY JURIKIUBIS YIm seel] (&
LoISeL oo 418l Jo) Juetiodw aue Tey) sesl) jo sdnelb jo sieqwel (F
$82l} UJaJ8A 10 ‘s8injee) [eimnopogae jo sjusuodwos [edipuld (G
siojoe} Jayio (p

(wbsg> ‘aiqminsun qeud) @218 Jo ssejpiels) a|oisia AR)gnd jou Jo [ews A/BunaA {1
{wibssz-g = jrews "Assiiun) AYNOWIP YIm Aluc ejqisia seuo Jebie| 1o ‘saaly [ewg {2
{wbspo)-ge=pew ‘elrIns) AlLUO MalA palII UYIm seal) Jeflel 1o ‘seell wWnipely {g
{wbs00z-003=081) OljgNd aY) ©} BqIsiA A|Teeio seal) WnipaLl Jo ‘seal) ebe (p
(+wbsppz=ef) A} $81NJES) JUBUIWCI Sl Jey] SaaJ) aBie) Jo ‘soou) abre] Alap (g
Aqieta angnd aajejay (o

(ejceunsun) 01>
{s1qB1Ns 18N} 02 — 01
(a1qeuns) ov — 02
0oL — O

001
AashBuon

e e e
Qo N e O

peag (0

ajesun (0

(A1esun) Jood (1
{aygeyns) Jed (€
{eygeiins AUBIY) poosy (5
uonipuo) (e

—

TUSUISS5556 ANUOWY | | 1MBd

A nonada
gCciHrioc

0 0
=
0 =l o
=
0 %l o
L
0 w| O
e
0 @l o
o =t
0 £ o ©
o @
lo wl O =
E o
0 5| ©
[e]
0 i
h -
0 sl o
0 gl 0
0 5| o
=
0 2| 0
3|
0 Ei 0
o
0 o| 0
=
A 4 G g 11 i ¥ _ ) 008 ewn 1L
ENIA Aousy slojoe} gns | AUpqISIA - 9 | AnaaBuoT - q | uonipuon - e | (Ww)
SojON odL |79 | padxg | 12ue - P ot
JuaWIsSsassy Ajuswry Hdaa sa|oedg @al]
Ae|bey ‘aoe|d UoYENAT :Sjela(] 2115/SS0IppY
K
LIL0Z AINP \Npe eleq I jo g "ON 198Ysg aHv

:Aq uonenjeag

483YS UOLBNIBAZ 33| O W I L




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO. 4) 2017 - Trees on land at 5 — 9 Station
Road, Hagley.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Kit Taylor

Portfolio Holder Consulted No

Relevant Head of Service Head of Planning Services
Ward(s) Affected Hagley West

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

The Committee is asked to consider whether it is Expedient in the interest of
Amenity to confirm with modification Tree Preservation Order (No.4) 2017
relating to trees on land at 5-9 Station Road, Hagley.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Tree Preservation Order (No.4) 2017 relating to
trees on land at 5-9 Station Road, Hagley is Confirmed with
modifications.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are no financial implications relating to the confirmation of the TPO.

Legal Implications

3.2 The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations
2012 cover this procedure.

Service / Operational Implications

3.3 Background

The provisional TPO (Appendix A) was made on the 23™ March 2017 to
protect trees at the above properties from removal or damage during site
investigations and/or development works on land at the rear of 5/7 Station
Road.

Page 63



Agenda Item 7

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

3.4  Planning permission for a dwelling at the rear of 5/7 Station Road was granted
in 2011. Although this has now lapsed and an application for an office
development in 2017 was refused, the principle of development on the site
was established. Over this period and particularly since the refusal of the
latest application, discussions over development of the site have been taking
place between the owner & the Planning Department with consultations sent
to the Tree Service. Since the 2010 application, the site had become heavily
vegetated with bramble & scrub preventing access to and assessment of the
trees. Clearance of this vegetation was carried out in early 2017 to facilitate
surveying of the site & trees although ground conditions still made access
difficult.

3.5 Some degree of protection of trees on the application site and the adjacent
garden of 9 Station Road (whose branches & roots extent over the site
boundary) is already provided by the existing Conservation Area status of the
site and by Conditions on the lapsed planning permission, which could be
reapplied on any future development. However, both of these measures hold
weaknesses or limitations in creating or enforcing permanent protection of all
trees on the site and so government guidance advises the making of a TPO
where permanent protection of specific trees is desired.

3.6  While the owner of the site has been cooperative & helpful during discussions
and previous applications, given the ongoing development history of the site,
the clearance works and amenity & screening value of the trees, it was
evident that on ongoing risk of tree damage or removal still exists. It therefore
appeared expedient at this point to make a TPO to provide immediate, clear &
comprehensive protection of all trees during ongoing pre-application
discussions and ultimately to provide permanent protection in the event of
future development being granted & taking place.

3.7 Due to ongoing discussions of the development of 7 Station Road, and
staffing and health constraints at this time, a detailed assessment of individual
trees and the extent of their branch and Root Protection Areas could
unfortunately not be carried out at or before the provisional stage. A
temporary Area designation was therefore used to cover all the trees on both
properties for the provisional period of the TPO.

Representations Received

3.8  One Objection has been received from Westside Forestry on behalf of the
owner of 9 Station Road, Hagley. (included as Appendix B)

3.9 Westside Forestry were acting as an Agent for the owners of 9 Station Road
for a Notification of Works to Trees in the Conservation Area received on 2™
February 2017. Prior to this, on 19th October 2016, a site visit and pre-
application advice was given to the owners over works to the trees on their

property.

Page 64



Agenda Item 7

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

3.10 Following receipt of the Notification, as the works detailed had some
variations from the earlier advice given, a second site visit was made on 22"
February 2017. During this visit, the main items discussed with the owner
were the removal of the Apple tree to facilitate a prospective side extension to
the house and works to the trees on the boundary with 7 Station Road which
provided screening from any prospective development.

3.11 The outcome of these discussions and advice was that it appeared possible to
carry out the prospective extension without needing to remove the Apple tree
and that it was desirable to retain the Hazel trees as coppice so that the
regrowth could provide additional screening should development take place
next door. As a consequence of this discussion, it was understood that this
variation was agreed, and consequently the final specification was amended
from that on the initial notification.

3.12 The final processing of the Notification for works at 9 Station Road, took place
concurrently with the discussions over the prospective development at 7
Station Road and the making of the provisional TPO coincided with the
issuing of the decision notice for the Notification. As the TPO was expected to
be in force when the decision notice was received, this was issued as a
consent for works under the TPO so that the agreed work could still go ahead.

3.13 Unfortunately, due to a large number of other cases during this time and
subsequent issues, these changes and the reasons for them were not clearly
communicated to the owners & Westside Forestry and this misunderstanding
is believed to have led to this objection for which | apologise. A subsequent
application to fell the Apple tree has been approved.

Recommendation

3.14 Following further pre-application discussions over prospective development at
the rear of 5/7 Station Road and a closer assessment of the adjacent trees, it
is considered that only a small number of trees closest to the area of
proposed development are of both sufficient amenity value, and are
potentially under threat of loss or damage, that it is expedient to include them
in a confirmed TPO.

3.15 Amenity Assessment
The TEMPO Assessment (included as Appendix C) details the trees
recommended for inclusion in the confirmed TPO. This comprises two trees at
the rear of 5/7 Station Road and three trees on the south-east boundary of 9
Station Road.

3.16 Itis recommended that it is considered expedient in the interests of amenity to
protect the 5 trees listed and that Tree Preservation Order (4) 2017 is
Confirmed with amendment as detailed in the revised Plan & Schedule.

Page 65



Agenda Item 7

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4™ September 2017

Policy Implications

3.17 Policy Implications - None
Council Objective 4- Environment, Priority CO4 Planning

3.18 Climate Change / Carbon/ Biodiversity- The Proposal in relation to confirming
the TPO can only be seen as a positive impact on the environment.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.19 The customers have been provided with the relevant notification and the
responses received are attached in the appendices. The customers will
receive notification by post of the decision of the committee.

3.20 Equalities and Diversity implications- None

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

There are no significant risks associated with the details included in this
report.

5. APPENDICES

A — Current Provisional TPO

B — Objection from Westside Forestry on behalf of 9 Station Road
C — TEMPO Amenity assessment

D — Revised Schedule

E — Revised Plan

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None
7. KEY

TPO - Tree Preservation Order

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Andrew Bucklitch
Email: andrew.bucklitch@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Tel:  (01527) 64252 x 3075

Page 66



Agenda Item 7

OPPEAIDUA A

Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012
Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Tree Preservation Order (4) 2017

Bromsgrove District Council in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order—

Citation

1. This Order may be cited as Tree Preservation order (4) 2017

Interpretation

2.— (1) In this Order “the authority” means Bromsgrove District Council.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered
regulation is a reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning

(Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012.

Effect

3.— (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is
made.

(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make free preservation
orders) or subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners)

and, subject to the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall—
{(a) cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or
(b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,

any tree specified in the Schedule to this Order except with the written consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of State in
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject to conditions, in

accordance with those conditions.
Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being
a tree to be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197
(planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees),
this Order takes effect as from the time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 22™ March 2017

Signed on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council

Page 67



Agenda Item 7

SCHEDULE

Specification of trees

Trees specified individually
(encircled in black on the map)

NONE

Trees specified by reference to an area
(within a dotted black line on the map)

No. On Map Description NGR Situation

A1l All trees of whatever 390339, 280461 Land at 5-9 Siation
size or species within Road, Hagley
A1l

Groups of trees
(within a broken black line on the map)

NONE

Woodlands
(within a continuous black line on the map)

NONE

Page 68



ai{tem 7

baaudcuoig, <@s12ovuayy

f_..u_Odu (.,\v.wz.i «ny?ﬂmu RN E 1R f}%\du w

m——g
H

.m_mﬂom&v e L, J.uZSQU Lb,\mrrw_ﬂ wo&m@gm&

EEmo
b.::EEoo




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Appendix B

Westside Foresiry Lid

Claire Felton

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services
Bromsgrove District & Redditch Borough Council
Parkside

Market Street

Bromsgrove

B61 8DA.

Monday 314 April, 2017

Dear Claire,

RE: OBJECTION TO BROMSGROVE COUNCIL TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO.
We act on behalf and have been instructed by 5 . the owner of no. 9 Station Road,

Hagley, in relation to submitting a formal objection to the recently served Tree Preservation Order
(TPO) at her property.

Background

Following on site discussions with the owner of no. 9, Westside Forestry were instructed to undertake
various trees works in January 2017. We understand from the owner that Andrew Bucklitch, your
Tree & Landscape Officer, had previously attended the site and discussed the trees with the owner.

Consequently, we submitted a Conservation Area (CA) Notification (Section 211 Notice) on 231
January 2017, via the Planning Portal (Ref: PP — 05774474). We received a formal acknowledgement
of the notification from Bromsgrove Council on the 2nd February 2017.

Following the cessation of the 6-week period, we contacted Andrew Bucklitch via email on the 17th
March requesting confirmation we could undertake the works, and again on the 20t March 2017. We
received a reply on 215t March 2017 which included a formal TPO Consent Notice (dated 21.3.2017)
detailing various works (attached). Importantly the approval had altered the work which was
originally notified in terms of an Apple tree which was intended to be felled but the approval altered
to ‘Retain, Reduce and reshape by up to 20%’ and instead of felling 9no Hazel it had been altered to
‘Coppice at 100mm to regenerate’. At no point did we as Agent or the Applicant receive any formal
request to alter our Section 211 Notice. It is understood that Andrew had discussions with [~
during his site visit and indicated that he would allow pruning of the Apple but not for it to be felled.

Given that the Hazel stems are less than 75mm measured at 1.5m in height the Conservation Area
does not afford them protection and the Council cannot prevent their felling in any event.

The Council has a Statutory period of 6 weeks to either allow the works or prevent them by the serving
of a TPO:

“A section 211 notice is not, and should not be treated as, an application for consent under an Order.
So the authority cannot:

srefuse consent; or

egrant consent subject to conditions.

Paragraph: 118 Reference ID: 36-118-20140306"

Constructionline ssgp Rt \‘;%,ﬁj'f‘ge W 2&5



Agenda Item 7

Given that we had received a formal TPO consent not a Conservation Area consent, we sought to
clarify if the trees were either protected by a TPO or a CA and confirmed the owner’s intention to have
the Apple tree felled, via an email to Andrew on the 215t March 2017.

Andrew replied on the 23 March 2017 indicating that the trees were subject to both TPO and CA
protection which had been severed as an Area designated TPO on no. 5-9 Hagley Road on 227 March
D017,

Following receipt of the TPO I contacted Andrew via telephone (23'¢ March 2017) to clarify and he
indicated that the TPO had been served to both prevent the felling of the Apple tree and to improve
the protection of the trees in respect of development to the rear of no..

In its self, the Consent Notice is confusing with a variety of mixed reference numbers and no plan to
which they refer and is subject to conditions which are not allowed under the CA legislation (attached).

It should be noted that the rear garden of no. 9 contains at least 15 other trees which are proposed to
be retained and therefore screen the majority of the property when viewed from the rear.

Discussion

All trees within the garden of no. 9 which have a stem diameter of greater than 75mm are afforded
statutory protection by virtue of their location within the CA, providing them with exactly the same
level of protection as trees subject to TPO in terms of breaches. It would therefore only be expedient
to serve a TPO to prevent the removal of a tree following a Section 211 Notice. As all other works
appear to have been approved under the Section 211 Notice it is understood that the Council is only
concerned with protecting the Apple tree.

The Apple tree (see photos below) which was subject to the Section 211 notice and is intended to fell
is approx. 6m in height, has a branch spread of approx. 4m and bifurcates at 0. 5m with stem diameters
of 31omm and 230mm and is situated approx. 4.3m from the rear southern corner of the dwelling. Its
condition is considered fair, despite the presence of a decaying branch wound at approx. 1m. It is
situated approx. 3om from the front public footpath with Station Road and at least 50m from the car
park of the Community centre to the South. It is therefore considered to have very limited public visual
amenity, as it cannot easily be seen from any public vantage point (see photos). It is not considered to
have any significant species, ecological or historical attributes. Its removal would have no significant
impact on the Conservation Area. Whilst it may be considered an attractive Apple tree when viewed
from within the garden it is not considered to provide public amenity benefit nor does it make a
significant contribution to the Conservation Area.

The Council’s ‘Hagley Conservation Area Appraisal (June 2014)’ details trees which are subject to TPO
and those which it considers make a positive contribution to the Conservation Area, however the
Apple tree in question is not identified and as such the Council acknowledges it makes no significant
contribution.

Following recipet of the Section 211 Notice the Council has up to six weeks to consider making a TPO
to prevent works applied for being undertaken (i.e. prior to 16t March 2017). The Council visited the
site twice and discussed the trees with the owner but did not serve a TPO nor did they seek to formally
amend the Section 211 notice but provided a Consent notice which is not in accordance with the
relevant legislation.

The trees have been made subject to an ‘Area’ designation which should normally be used in an
emergency situation. The Council visited the site at least twice previously and had six weeks to serve
a suitable TPO identifying the individuals or groups of trees but failed to do so. T am not aware that
any objective amenity assessment has been undertaken prior to the serving of the TPO.

Constructionline ssfp o péqge mc _;;




Agenda Item 7

Itis not clear if the Consent notice issued by the Council is valid to allow the works which were subject
to Section 211 Notice, as a TPO has been served as an ‘Area’ designation protecting all trees subsequent
to the issuing of the Consent notice?

It appears that the Council have viewed the trees to the rear of no. 7 and 9 on numerous occasions and
did not consider a TPO appropriate despite granting planning permission for a dwelling to the rear of
no. 7 (2010) and indeed refusing a more recent application (2017).

Conclusion

The Council have not acted in accordance with their duty in the handling of the recent Section 211
Notice, resulting in the inappropriate serving of a TPO.

The trees within garden of no, 5, 7 & 9 Station Road are already subject to statutory protection by
virtue of their location within the Conservation Area.

The Apple tree which the Council have sought to retain by the serving of the TPO is not of sufficient
amenity value to warrant a TPO nor does it make a significant contribution to the Conservation Area.
Its removal would have no significant detriment to public amenity.

A formal application to fell the Apple tree was submitted on the 24t March 2017 under the recently
served TPO, should the Council refuse this application then an appeal to the Secretary of State will be
submitted.

The recently served TPO should not be confirmed.
I look forward to your reply clarifying the above points made.

I'would be happy to discuss any of the above and elaborate further if required, however please do not
hesitate to contact us should you have any queries.

Yours sincerely
/

Andrew Needham, BSc. vip siot, N. pip. Arb.
Consultant Arboriculturist

WEestside Forestry Ltd

All works carried out 1o BS3998:2010

ooon, it
¥ XN _?tya’: # Tel: 0121457 9457 Fax:
e C ZaS ‘

Constructionline ssfr




Agenda Iltem 7

Apple tree viewed from rear of house down rear garden (note Apple tree within 4.3m of house and
ends of branches almost touching house).

0 i % The Stabi art
@ (i C't-yéf*s . ? Tel: 0121 457 9457 Fax: 0121 54 8
g \¢ ge ?j#c & Company Reg No

“aS

Constructionline ssr




View from Station Road to front.

Constructionline sy

@ (ﬂ%ge

City&s

e

<i;<§‘sf

Agenda Item 7

Tel: 0121457 9457 Fax: 01215
Company Reg No. 04661

orestry.c

VAT Reg No 811 725157




Agenda Item 7

9 Stat‘i;)n Road

Hagley
DY9 oNU
Species Location Proposed Work Reason
Apple - see plan - fell to just above ground | Redesign of garden to allow

below level; for new plantings and aid
light and views to
householder. To allow
future potential
development of property

Station Rd

- —

; @ (’f‘a = C":-y&; 0 4 Tel: 0121 457 9457 Fax
Constructionline Sspp o \%ge wc iiiquf' (



Agenda Item 7

Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)

B rO m Sg rove (England) Regulations 2012
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

TREE WORKS DECISION NOTICE

Application No: TPO17/012
Agent Applicant
Allan Kenward s Lo
Westside Forestry Ltd. "9 station Road
The Stables, Harbours Hill Hagley
Belbroughton Worcesterhsire
DY9 9XE DY9 ONU
Particulars of Application
APPLICATION REFERENCE: TPO17/012
LOCATION: 9 Station Road Hagley Worcestershire

PROPOSAL:
G1 - Cypress, Staghorn & Wisteria, 3x Holly, Apple, 9x Hazel, 2x Birch, Cherry - Fell

T1 - Blue Spruce - Raise canopy to just above BT Cables

CASE OFFICER: Andrew Bucklitch 01527 548348 a.bucklitch@bromsgrove.qgov.uk

Particulars of Decision

DECISION DATE: 21st March 2017

Bromsgrove District Council, as the Local Planning Authority, grants permission for the following works:

T1 Cypress Located on frontage of property - of limited amenity value - Fell

Blue . ; .

Raise ca t e 1m clearance from phone lines

T2 i ai hopy to giv phone lin
G1 \Sl\fias?:::i;n = Located at side of property - of limited amenity value & affecting garage roof - Fell
G2 f:u':::ly’ Located at side of property - of limited amenity value & heavily shading property - Fell
T5 Apple Retain, Reduce & reshape by upto 20%
G3 ax Biwch; Cambial dieback to trunk & poor form - Fell

ix Cherry
G4 9x Hazel Coppice at 100mm to regenerate
This decision has been reached for the flowing reasons: . In the interests of safety & amenity.

This decision is subject to conditions which must be complied with and are set out below:
Ref Condition Reason

The permission is valid for a period of 2 years from the decision
1 date. Any works for which permission has been granted may
only be done once within that period.

To define the consent and allow for
satisfactory monitoring of the work.

The Local Planning Authority shall be given at least 14 days To ensure that the works are carried out to

2 notice of the applicant’s intention to commence the approved an acceptable standard and can be
works and the identity of the contractor monitored.
3 All works shall be carried out in accordance with British To regulate the standard of the authorised
Standard BS 3998:2010 . work.

If you would like any further information about our decision, please contact the Case Officer named above.

Page 77




Agenda Item 7

\

: . {

_—a / A

[+ \ "1

7\

At
,Aur“..,

Ruth Bamford
Head of Planning and Regeneration

Notes

* Please note that this consent only applies in regard to any Planning constraints upon the tree(s) or the land in which they are growing.
Permission from a landowner to enter their property and carry out any proposed works must still be obtained. Consent in respect of other
constraints such as restrictive covenants within the title deeds of the property may also be required.

e The applicant is advised to be aware of their obligations under the Habitats Regulations 2010 and the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
(as amended by the Countryside & Rights of Way Act 2000) to avoid disturbance of nesting wild birds and protected species such as bats,
badgers and dormice when carrying out these works.

Your Right of Appeal

If you disagree with our decision, under certain grounds you may appeal to the Secretary of State provided you do so within 28 days from
the date you receive this decision. Forms and further information may be obtained from The Environment Appeals Team, Trees and
Hedges, Room 3/25 Hawk Wing , Temple Quay House , 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN

Compensation
If you suffer any loss or damage as a result of any refusal of consent, or approval subject to conditions, you may, in those situations as

detailed in Part 6 of the Regulations, be entitled to recover compensation from the Council. Any claim must be made within 12 months of
the date of this decision and should be made in writing to the Head of Planning Services.

Page 78



Odl silew ABjuyaq 1G] $6INJ2e) DU|Wsspa) [2UHIPPE SAOME 8L JO BUOL UM Seal] (| {o|geynsun) gL> {0
OdlJ sisw Ajgissod g1 — 21 [ensnun Jc eJel )| Ajferoadsa ‘wloj pooli Apenoed Josess) (2 (eigeuns isnl) gz — g1 {1
—/l Odl swousaog 11—/ eouELodWL SAHEIOWSWWOS JO [EN0ISIY Jueoyubls yum ses.) (g {ajqeuns} ov —~ 0 (T
L sjqisusBpULOdL = 9~ | uolsayos Jjeu Jo) juenlodw sie Jey) sea o sdnolb o siequispy 00L—0oF (¥
ml Odl Aiddejouoq g Auy S08l] UBIgISA IC ‘'SaINIEe) [N NDKOGIR JO slusuodwoD [edpuld (g +001 {g
Qw S s10198} J8ylo (p AuaabuoT {g
<=t BOUEBSINU S|QBUOHOR UE SB umouy| (0 (bsg> ‘giqeinsun qo.d) @z|s Jo ssejpreBal ejqisia Alsygnd jou Jo rews aBunc {| peeq (0
-1 Auo Areuojneoald () (whsge-g = ews *Aaqqunt AYNoIIP Yis AJUO siqisia seuo Jebie| 16 'seal Bwg {2 ejesun (0
ﬁu eel] 0] 1ealy) pealgosed (2 fwbsgo L-gz=paly 'alqeuns) AUO MmalA pelW| Uim seal) JaBie| 10 ‘seal} wnipay {& (Alexun) a00gd (1
-~ 8s1} 0} Jes.y} ejqeeeselod (g {wbzooz-¢o1=96) Sjgnd aUj} 0} s|qISIA ApespD S98)) WNIpeW Jo 'seel) ebien (i (agqeuns) aeq (g
du 281] 0] 1ealy) usmouy| (g {+wibsooz=ab) A) seInjee] Jueliwosd ale Jey) seal) abiey 1o ‘seal} ebiel Alep, (5 (Blgenns Ajubiy} poon (g
T Araisia ajand eaneley (o uonipuog (2
Qu JUSIISSassE ANy | | ed
Q) 0 0
I~ n—
0 =l o
=2
0 o 0
ffe}
0 w|l O
=}
o
0 el o
Q =2
0 €10 N~
0 25 o
.m a
0 5| © Al
j=9
0 oo
0 8| o
3]
0 S 0
[
A lp1 € b z| 0L |E 14 £ 00¥ ysy S1
£
Ao |vL € ! %1 Ok |€ 4 £ 00¥ Asyn a1
S
A vt € | m oF | g > 00¥ ysy el
£ ot e z ITRE 5 g 000k o|  |ezeH Al
b=
A lel g l 6 |¢ 14 £ 0oy Jeed bl
EN/A foual s10}o8} ang | Anaisip -9 | AnashBuocT - q | uonipuo) - e | (W)
SO9JON OdL AUOOG —uwnxm U)o - p Joy
UBWISSISSY AYuewny Hga sejoadg aad]
SI0¥H ‘Peod UoRRIS 15 :s|Iejaq ONS/SSAIPPY
10z 1snbny ic| oreq | ! o b -onjeesug gaHY :Aq uopen[eag

ARG vagenieas aal O'd WL




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

First Schedule M BN b

Trees specified individually

{encircled in black on the map)

No. on Description | NGR Situation

Map

T Pear 390350, 280469 | Rear of 5/7 Station Road, Hagley

T2 Hazel 390350, 280447 | Rear of 5/7 Station Road, Hagley

T3 Ash 390332, 280451 | Rear boundary of 7 & 9 Station Road, Hagley
T4 Cherry 390330, 280442 | Rear boundary of 7 & 9 Station Road, Hagley
T5 Ash 390328, 280432 | Rear boundary of 7 & 9 Station Road, Hagley

Trees specified by reference to an area

(within a dotted black line on the map)

NONE

Groups of Trees

(within a broken black line on the map)

NONE

Woodlands

{within a continuous black line on the map)

NONE

Page 81




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

rﬂistrict Council of Bromsgrove Tree Preservation Order (4) 2017
5 - 9 Station Road, Hagley

+
i
L

STATIO N R ; Chur

C
I
O

u".\q-.

S 98.0m

167

o
O
Gl
r

o
46

Lilyy )

Number 100023519 (2011).

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Mr & Mrs T Two-storey side extension and pitched roof 17.07.2017 17/00550/FUL
Jennings over existing garage

342 Alcester Road, Burcot, Bromsgrove,
Worcestershire, B60 1BH

Councillor Whittaker has requested that this application be considered by Planning
Committee rather than being determined under delegated powers.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused

Consultations

No consultation required
Public notifications
One site notice was posted 16.06.2017 and expired 07.07.2017: No response received.

Two neighbour letters sent 15.06.2017 and expired 06.07.2017; No response received.

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles

BDP4 Green Belt

BDP19 High Quality Design

Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPG National Planning Practice Guidance
SPG1 Residential Design Guide

Relevant Planning History

17/0144 Demolition of a single storey detached Withdrawn 11.05.2017
garage and workshop, attached toilet
extension and attached conservatory
and replacement with a two storey
kitchen and bathroom extension, single
storey garage and conservatory.

Page 85



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

BU/237/1969 Garage. Granted 18.06.1969
Proposed garage. Granted 13.04.1960
Proposed house. Granted 09.07.1952

Assessment of Proposal

The application site is located within the defined village envelope of Burcot, which is an
area designated as Green Belt. Burcot Village Hall is situated to the west side of the site,
and there are residential properties to the east and opposite the site.

The host dwelling was constructed around the early 1950's and historical records show
that the porch, the conservatory, and the garage are later additions.

The current proposal is for a two storey side extension, which would attach to the existing
detached garage and store room. Part of the existing garage building would be
demolished as part of the scheme. The proposal would also include the addition of a
pitched roof over the garage and the replacement of the raised patio to the rear.

Given that the property lies within the Green Belt the main issues to consider with this
application are whether the proposal would constitute inappropriate development within
the Green Belt, and whether it would have any adverse impact on the openness of the
Green Belt. Further to this the impact of the proposal on the character of the dwelling and
the local area, and the impact on residential amenity will need to be considered.

Green Belt

There is a presumption against development within the Green Belt; however paragraph
89 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) lists a number of exceptions that
may not be inappropriate within the Green Belt, which include a proportionate addition to
an original building. Policy BDP4.4c of the Bromsgrove District Plan states than an
extension of up to a 40% increase of the original dwelling may be appropriate provided it
has no adverse impact on the openness of the Green Belt. The NPPF defines an original
building to be a building as it was originally constructed or as it existed on the 1st July
1948; whichever is later. In this case the building as originally constructed comprised floor
space totalling 132.16 sqgm.

Additions to the original building would include the existing conservatory and porch
extensions, which are modest in scale, and the proposed additions of the two storey
extension and the retained part of the non-original garage. Calculations for previous and
proposed extensions are shown in the table below.

Sq metres %
Floor space of the original dwelling 132.16
Previous extensions
Conservatory 12.96 9.8%
Porch 3.30 2.5%

Page 86



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

Retained part of garage (not including demolished part) 25.97 19.65%

Proposed extensions

Two storey extension (3.7x5.9x2) =1 33.04%
43.66

Minus original toilet to be demolished in place for extension | -6.84 -5.2%

Total additional floor space above that of original 79.05 59.81%

The proposal, accounting for the partial demolition of the existing garage, would result in
additional floor space totalling 79.05 square metres above that of the original or a 59.8%
increase. Given that this would exceed the 40% tolerance set out in Policy BDP4.4c and
given that the additions would have a moderate impact on openness by visibly filling the
open space on the west side of the dwelling, the proposal would be considered
inappropriate development within the Green Belt.

In accordance with the NPPF inappropriate development is harmful by definition and
should not be approved except in very special circumstances. Any harm to the Green Belt
is assigned substantial weight. A number of considerations summarised below have been
put forward by the applicant, however it is felt that these would not amount to a very
special circumstance that would clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt.

Summary of consideration put
forward

Officer’s assessment

There was an original garage built with
the house, which has since been
demolished. This should be included
within the original floor space
calculations.

As the building no longer exists today, the floor space
cannot be counted within the calculations.
Notwithstanding this there is insufficient evidence to
prove its existence or understand its size.

The application site is located within a
built up area of ribbon development.

The assessment of whether an extension is
proportionate and therefore appropriate development
within the Green Belt, does not take into account
whether the building is within a ribbon of
development.

There would not be any visual harm
arising from the proposed development.

Lack of visual harm would not outweigh the
definitional harm arising through the development
being inappropriate.

Subservience of the extension to the
original property.

Policy BDP4.4c defines proportionate to be a
maximum of 40% increase in floor space above the
original, and not whether the design appears
subservient.

Limited impact of previous extensions

Previous extensions, even if modest, would contribute
towards to 40% tolerance set out in Policy BDP4.4c.

Location within a village where new infill
development is acceptable

Infill development is a different exception within the
NPPF and Development plan, and is therefore
irrelevant to the determination of this application.

Page 87




Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

Compatibility with Green Belt purposes | Although the development does not conflict with
Green belt purposes, it would still amount to
inappropriate development, which must be given
substantial weight.

Scope to extend the property under The permitted development ‘fall back’ position would
permitted development not be equivalent to the proposal in terms of location,
and no information has been put forward to suggest
that building this alternative would be a likely
prospect.

Improved design of the dwelling The limited design improvements would not outweigh
the substantial harm arising through inappropriate
development within the Green Belt.

Design

In design terms, the two storey side extension would be of a substantial width and would
include a half-hipped roof design, which would not entirely match the more simple hipped
design of the main roof. Although both the width of the extension and the proposed roof
design would result in a relatively wide looking structure, the two storey extension would
be well set back from the front of the dwelling and overall would appear subordinate,
meeting the guidance contained in the Council's SPG 'Residential Design Guide'. The
replacement of the existing flat roof of the garage with a pitched roof would have some
design benefit by harmonising its appearance with the main dwelling. Overall the design
merits of the scheme would lead to an enhancement of the character of the local area
and would fulfil the requirements of Policy BDP19.

Amenity

Having regard to policy BDP1.4e of the Bromsgrove District Plan, which seeks to protect
residential amenity, it is noted that the proposed development would be located on the
west side of the application site, where the boundary is shared with the local village hall.
Notwithstanding this the two storey element of the proposal would be positioned a
minimum of 1.7 metres from the common boundary, and addition of the roof to the garage
would only create a single storey development of a relatively modest height. Given the
relationship of the proposed balcony and the raised patio area to the adjacent village hall
building, there would not be a loss of privacy as a result of the proposal.

Conclusion

The limited enhancement to the appearance of the dwelling, and the lack of harm arising
to neighbouring amenity would not outweigh the substantial weight that is assigned to
harm to the Green Belt through inappropriateness and loss of openness. The other
considerations put forward as part of this application would not amount to a very special
circumstance that would outweigh harm arising to the Green Belt.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused

Reasons for Refusal

1) The site is identified as an area falling within the Green Belt where there is a
presumption against inappropriate development. The proposed extensions, in

Page 88



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

addition to previous extensions, would result in disproportionate additions and
would therefore amount to inappropriate development within the Green Belt, which
is, by definition harmful. The proposal would also have a moderate impact on the
openness of the Green Belt. Considerations put forward would not amount to a
very special circumstance that would outweigh the harm that would be caused to
the Green Belt. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy BDP4 of the
Bromsgrove District Plan (2011-2030) and the provisions of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Case Officer: Charlotte Wood Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3412
Email: Charlotte. Wood@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Ms Lorna Two storey side and rear extension 01.08.2017 17/00615/FUL
McNeil

99 New Road, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire,

B60 2LL,
RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused
Councillor Spencer has requested that this application be considered by Planning
Committee rather than being determined under Delegated Powers for Committee

Members to consider the merits of the proposal.

Public Consultation

8 neighbour notification letters sent out on 28.6.2017 (Expired on 19.7.2017)
No comments received.

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP16 Sustainable Transport

BDP19 High Quality Design

Others

SPG1 Residential Design Guide

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
NPPG National Planning Practice Guidance

Relevant Planning History

None

Assessment of Proposal

99 New Road, Bromsgrove is a detached property situated within an area designated as
residential in the Bromsgrove District Plan, where the principle of development is
considered acceptable.

The main things to consider in the determination of this application are the design of the
proposal, its impact on the character and appearance of the street scene and its impact
on the amenities of the neighbouring occupiers.

Design and character and appearance of area

The proposal is for a two storey side and rear extension and a single storey rear
extension. The two storey side extension would be set off the boundary with the

Page 91



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

neighbouring property by 1 metre, leaving a gap of just over 2 metres between the two
properties. This gap would enable the properties to maintain their detached appearance
and would not affect the character of the locality.

The proposed extension is shown to be flush with the front wall and in line with the roof
line of the existing house. The proposal would not therefore be in full accordance with the
design guidance set out in SPG,1 as it would not be set back or set down from the
existing house. However due to the variety of properties in the street scene, it is not
considered that the proposal would affect the overall character or local distinctiveness of
the area. Therefore in this case it is considered that it would accord with policy BDP19 of
the Bromsgrove District Plan.

Amenity

There are ground and first floor windows situated within the side elevation of the
neighbouring property which face onto the existing gable end wall of N0.99. Most of these
windows appear to be either secondary windows or windows which serve non habitable
rooms; although one of the first floor windows is the sole window serving a bedroom/
dressing room, which is considered to be a habitable room.

There is currently a significant gap between this window and the existing two storey gable
wall of No. 99. The proposed extension would reduce this gap down to just over 2 metres.
It is considered that the scale and bulk of the proposed extension so close to this window
would have an overbearing impact on the neighbouring occupiers causing a loss of light
and outlook. It is therefore considered that the proposal would adversely affect the
existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers contrary to policy BDP1 of the Bromsgrove
District Plan.

Conclusion

Overall it is considered that the proposal would not alter the character or appearance of
the area, but that it would have an adverse impact on the amenities of the neighbouring
occupiers. As such it is considered that the proposal would not accord with the polices in
the Bromsgrove District Plan or the NPPF and as such would not be acceptable.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused

Reasons for Refusal

1) The scale, bulk and sitting of the proposed extension would have an overbearing
impact and cause a loss of light and outlook upon the neighbouring occupiers. This
would have an adverse impact on their existing amenities contrary to policy BDP1 of
the Bromsgrove District Plan 2017, the guidance contained in SPG1 Residential
Design Guide, and the guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Case Officer: Julie Male Tel: 01527 881338
Email: .male@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 92



Agenda Item 10

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Mr Julian Lewis Demolition of conservatory and erection 17.08.2017 17/00710/
of a two storey extension and porch FUL

Bridge House, Fish House Lane, Stoke

Prior, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire B60 4JT
RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be REFUSED
CliIr Glass has requested that this application be considered by Planning Committee
rather than be determined by Delegated powers, for the Applicant to have an opportunity

to speak to outline why the scheme was acceptable.

Consultations

Stoke Parish Council Consulted 12.07.2017
No Comments Received To Date

Highways - Bromsgrove Consulted 12.07.2017
No Comments Received To Date

Worcestershire County Council Countryside Service Consulted 12.07.2017
No Comments Received To Date

Drainage Engineers Internal Planning Consultation Consulted 12.07.2017

The site falls within flood zones 2 & 3 (high risk of flooding) and is also shown to be
susceptible to surface water flooding which has potential to be deep (over 300mm) and
fast flowing (over 0.25m/s). We do hold reports of flooding in the vicinity.

While | acknowledge that the proposed extension is located over where a conservatory is
currently located, it is still important to ensure that surface water for the development is
appropriately managed and that no increase in flood risk is caused elsewhere.

The FRA mentions that water-butts will be utilised as a method of sustainable drainage;
these are not considered to be appropriate drainage alone since they may not be emptied
regularly enough or sized appropriately to capture sufficient water to ensure no increase
in runoff from the site. They could however be used in conjunction with other drainage
techniques - clay soils do not necessarily mean that SuDS are not possible, just that
more bespoke solutions are needed. | presume the existing storm water system will be
utilised and therefore have no major concerns regarding this.

| also would like to draw attention to the fact that while the FRA uses local data for the
modelled flood depths, the Climate Change allowances used relate to the Humber
river basin district, not the Severn - therefore the climate change limits included are
lower than they should be (30-50% instead of 40-70%) and the on-site risk when climate
change is included is going to be higher than is stated.

Page 93



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

Since the application relates to an extension of an existing dwelling, raising floor levels of
this alone will not alter the overall flood risk of the dwelling as a whole, and therefore
following the EA's 2016 guidance on minor developments and extensions in flood zones 2
& 3, it would be appropriate to set floor levels no lower than existing levels, AND to flood
proof the development to the 1:100 (1%) fluvial flooding level including an appropriate
climate change allowance. This could include measures such as anti-flood air-bricks as
well as resilience measures such as raised electricity sockets.

The FRA does mention these measures, however the Climate Change allowances
included are not suitable, | would therefore like to suggest that should you be minded to
grant permission, the FRA as it stands is not included as one of the approved documents,
and that the following condition is attached to your decision notice:

Finished floor levels within the development shall be set no lower than existing levels
AND flood proofing of the development has been incorporated to the 1:100 (1%) fluvial
flooding level including an appropriate climate change allowance.

WRS - Contaminated Land Consulted 12.07.2017
No Comments Received To Date

4 Neighbours notified, -no responses received
Site notice posted 20.7.17 expires 10.8.17
Press notice Posted 17.7.17 expires 7.8.17

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP4 Green Belt

BDP19 High Quality Design

BDP22 Climate Change

BDP23 Water Management

Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
NPPG National Planning Practice Guidance
SPG1 Residential Design Guide

SPG 4 Conversion of Rural buildings

Relevant Planning History

B16508 Conversion of out buildings to dwelling Approved 15.8.88

B/18328 Conversion of conservatory to lounge Approved 09.10.1989
(amendment to Plan No. B16508).

Page 94



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

B/2005/0321 First floor link extension. 18.05.2005

16/0466 Demolition of rear conservatory and Refused 12.08.2016
Erection of 2 storey extension

Assessment of Proposal

Green Belt

Paragraph 89 of the National Planning Policy Framework explains that the construction of
new buildings should be regarded as inappropriate development in the Green Belt,
subject to a number of exceptions. One of these exceptions is the extension or alteration
of a building provided that it does not result in a disproportionate addition over and above
the size of the original building.

Original Converted stable building 126.68m2
Previous Extension 112.31m2
This Extension 64.85m2
Total extensions of 177.16m2
This equates to an increase of 139.84%

Historically the buildings comprised a single storey garage and a stable building.

As part of the 1988 conversion, new floor space was created above the garage, a glazed
conservatory was formed linking the buildings and the first floor of the stable building was
extended further to create an en-suite.

In 1989 permission was granted retrospectively for a brick infill replacing the conservatory
with a lounge.

In 2005 permission was granted for a first floor infill above the lounge to provide a first
continuous access along the first floor.

Members will note that despite the removal of permitted development rights as part of the
original consent (reference B16508 condition 3), a conservatory and porch have also
been added in the interim years. The LPA is satisfied that whilst these are unauthorised
they were constructed more than four years ago and are therefore exempt from any
enforcement action.

The proposal is to further enlarge the dwelling to the northern elevation, replacing the
single storey conservatory and porch with a mainly two storey extension with a single
storey element. This results in an increase of 177.16m? which would equate to an
increase of 139.8% and represent a disproportionate addition.

Page 95



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

Your adopted Policy BDP4 specifies that extensions that exceed 40% would be
considered disproportionate. Disproportionate additions in the Green Belt represent
inappropriate development and inappropriate development is by definition considered
harmful to the openness of the Green Belt. The NPPF requires LPA’s to attach
substantial weight the potential harm to the Green Belt and to consider whether there are
any very special circumstances that may outweigh the harm the proposal causes in this
instance.

Very Special Circumstances

The applicant has provided justification for the works in terms of what they consider to be
very special circumstances. The statement outlines that there will be:

(2) Little or no harm to the openness or visual amenity as the property is in a secluded
or little use location at over 30m away from any listed buildings and the
neighbouring properties have written letters of support for the proposal.

(2)  The increase of the slab level for the extension will improve flood attenuation of the
house as it replaces an existing conservatory.

(3) There are other examples of the over large extensions and replacement dwelling
granted in the District.

Harm to openness

In response, the Local Planning Authority do not consider there is no harm to openness
or any impact to visual amenity in this instance. Whilst it is acknowledged that
neighbouring properties have written in support of the works the works remain clearly
disproportionate. The works will still clearly be seen.

It is acknowledged that the site is fairly isolated and this, in the LPA’s opinion makes the
extension more harmful to this location rather than as stated. If views are obscured this
again does not overcome harm.

Sustainability

The new extension may be effectively flood resistant however this does not overcome the
harm to openness by itself.

The Local Planning Authority are not contending that the extension is harmful to the
setting of a listed building (located over 30m away) or in fact to other properties however
lack of harm in these instances do not outweigh the harm of inappropriate development

The size the original conversion/extensions

The applicant maintains that there was a link between the original buildings, however, the
existing floor plans submitted under the conversion application 1988 (ref B16508) simply
show a brick wall link. The report of 1989 refers to 'a plain brick wall with a parapet'. Even
if the LPA were minded to take a link into consideration when calculating the original floor
space of the building, the remaining and proposed extensions would still equate to a floor
area of 153.79m, an increase of 102.2%.

Page 96



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

Design Appearance

When considering Policy BDP15 and BDP 19 of the adopted District Plan and the
Council's SPG4 guidance on conversions it could be argued that the traditional form and
distinctive character of the original stable building has already been compromised to a
certain degree. The proposed extension would continue the linear form of the original
building and would reflect the gable fronted design of the original garage element. It
would result in a more sympathetic addition than the existing glazed conservatory which it
would replace in terms of design and materials.

Whilst the proposed extension would not be visible from Fish House Lane it would be
visible from the public bridleway, however, no objections have been received and it would
not be considered harmful to the character of the area. Due to the buildings orientation
and the mature screening surrounding the majority of the application site, the proposal
would only be visible from the adjacent property Needle Mill Cottage.

It is not considered that the proposal would be clearly visible from or detract from the
listed building which is located more than 30 metres away.

Amenity

The nearest property is adjacent and it Needle Mill Cottage. The orientation of Needle Mill
Cottage, however, means that it faces towards the southern end of the building rather
than the northern end where the proposal would be situated. Whilst there would be no
overlooking or overshadowing, the proposal is most visible from the garden of Needle Mill
Cottage.

Flooding

The dwelling is located within flood zones 2 and 3 due to its close proximity to the River
Salwarpe. It is a national requirement within the NPPF that a flood risk assessment be
undertaken, even for minor developments in flood zones 2 and 3, prior to determination.
Given the previous application and association reason for refusal , the applicant has now
submitted a full Flood Risk Assessment. The flood risk assessment provided contains
modelling data which is based on the incorrect catchment however the North
Worcestershire Water Management Team have indicated that subject to floor levels to
address the correct data then conditions may be imposed to ensure the development
complies with BDP 1 and 23 of the BDP.

Access and Parking

Members will note that Highways engineers did not raise any objections to the scheme
previously (reference:16/0466) and access and parking arrangements remain unchanged
therefore the scheme would be considered acceptable in terms of policy advice for
access and parking

Other issues / approved applications

The applicant has provided examples of other approved extensions in the Green Belt.
However members will appreciate that every application is based on its own merits.

Page 97



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

13/0120 is for a replacement dwelling and is not comparable in this instance as other
factors were considered in terms of outbuildings and cellarage areas which were
considered in this assessment

16/0704 — Fish House Mill is a property with ‘Permitted Development Rights’ intact and
8m rear extension (while it is accepted is disproportionate) was constructed under the
householder Prior Notification Scheme. PD rights are not applicable to this converted
rural building as these rights have been removed.

17/0058 - Fish House Mill. This further permission was approved given the ability to
again extend under standard Permitted development rights of Class A given the ability to
provide a larger extension that the application as submitted so again Members will
appreciate the ‘fallback’ position in this case.

Conclusion

In conclusion the proposal would represent a disproportionate addition and
disproportionate additions represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt. In this
instances the VSC outlined and the lack of harm to residential amenity clearly do not
outweigh the significant harm to the openness of the Green Belt this extension proposal
would cause in this case.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused

Reasons for Refusal

1. The extension represents a disproportionate addition in the Green Belt.
Disproportionate additions represent ‘inappropriate development in the Green Belt’
and ‘inappropriate development’ is by definition fundamentally harmful to the
openness of the Green Belt in this location.

Whilst there is no perceived harm to residential amenity and the circumstances of
other approved extensions outlined by the applicant, these do not represent ‘very
special circumstances’ that overcome the harm of the development or its
inappropriateness and the harm to the openness of the Green Belt in this instance.
The proposal is considered contrary to Policy BDP4 of the Bromsgrove District Plan
2011-20130 and the advice and guidance contained in the NPPF (Para 87-89).

Case Officer: Sarah Willetts Tel: 01527 881607
Email: Sarah.willetts@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 98



Agenda Item 11

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Mr Geoff Ellis  Extension to garage 10.08.2017 17/00728/
FUL

Poultry Farm Cottage, Agmore Lane,
Tardebigge, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire
B60 1PS

Councillor Deeming has requested that this application be considered by Planning
Committee rather than being determined under delegated powers.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused

Consultations

Tutnall and Cobley Parish Council Consulted 29.06.2017
No Comments Received To Date

Publicity
1 neighbour notified 29.06.2017, expires 20.07.2017: No response received.

1 site notice was posted 05.07.2017, expires 26.07.2017 : No response received.
Councillor Deeming — Would like members to consider the planning merits.

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP4 Green Belt

BDP19 High Quality Design

Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Relevant Planning History

B/2005/0670 Single storey rear extension Allowed on 13.10.2005
Appeal

B/2001/0025 Extension to dwelling. Approved 02.03.2001

B/2000/1049 Extension to dwelling and detached Approved 27.11.2000

garage. Change of use of land from
agricultural to domestic for repositioned
drive access.

Page 99



Agenda Item 11

Plan reference

Assessment of Proposal

Poultry Farm Cottage is one of a pair of semi-detached dwellings located off Agmore
Lane in a remote position. The planning history shows extensions to the dwelling in
excess of 40%, including a rear extension allowed on appeal, and a separate detached
garage.

The main issues are whether or not the proposal would be inappropriate development in
the Green Belt; the effect of the proposal on the openness of the Green Belt and, if the
development is inappropriate, whether the harm, by reason of inappropriateness and any
other harm, would be clearly outweighed by other considerations so as to amount to the
very special circumstances necessary to justify the development. In addition to this,
whether its design would be in keeping with the character of the rural building and
whether the proposal would be detrimental to the visual amenities and character of the
area.

The site is in the Green Belt. The National Planning Policy Framework is a material
consideration and states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent
urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. Paragraph 89 of the Framework says
that the construction of new buildings should be regarded as inappropriate in the Green
Belt.

Policy BDP4 of the adopted local plan seeks to protect the character of the Green Belt
and states that the development of new buildings in the Green Belt is considered to be
inappropriate except in certain circumstances. BDP4.4 point c) permits extensions up to
40% of the original dwelling. There is no allowance in respect of outbuildings although
replacement buildings within the curtilage can be considered acceptable if they are not
materially larger than that existing. In this case the existing building is a double garage
with a pitched roof, 6.3 metres by 6.1 metres and a height of 2.7metres to eaves and 5.2
metres to the ridge.

The proposed garage as extended is of significant size of 8.6 metres by 6.3 metres, 2.7
metres high to eaves and an overall ridge height of 5.7 metres, with an additional floor
within the roof space. Therefore the garage would be materially larger both in terms of
footprint and scale and is, by definition, inappropriate development in the Green Belt, thus
harming the openness of the Green Belt and contrary to the NPPF, Policy BDP4 of the
BDLP.

The applicant has put forward that, ‘this is for a games room for my grandchildren, who |
collect from school every day, they don't have the room at home to enjoy indoors games
activities’. However this argument could be repeated elsewhere and | do not consider that
these comprise the very special circumstances required to overcome the harm to the
Green Belt.

It is concluded that the development is inappropriate and by definition harmful. Its bulk
and additional height above the existing structure add to this harm and reduce openness
so undermining one of the key purposes of Green Belt designation. It is considered that
there are no very special circumstances to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt. In
addition this is well in excess of the 4 metre height that could in other circumstances be
allowable under permitted development for single storey curtilage buildings. In this case it

Page 100



Agenda Item 11

Plan reference

is a two storey building and therefore no realistic permitted development fall-back position
would apply.

No very special circumstances exist that would outweigh the harm that would be caused
to the Green Belt. The proposal would therefore be contrary to BDP4, and BDP19 of the
Bromsgrove District Plan and the guidance contained in Paragraph 89 of the NPPF.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused.

Reasons for Refusal

1) The proposed development is inappropriate and by definition harmful. Its bulk and
additional height above the existing structure add to this harm and reduce
openness so undermining one of the key purposes of Green Belt designation.
There are no very special circumstances to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt.
The proposal would therefore be contrary to BDP4 and BDP19 of the Bromsgrove
District Plan and the guidance contained in Paragraph 89 of the NPPF.

Case Officer: Sally Price Tel: 01527 881683
Email: sally.price@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Mr John Signage 1 - Large extrude aluminium 11.09.2017 17/00810/
Godwin (for lettering (BSLC) back lit white illumination to ADV
Bromsgrove the left hand side of the climbing wall block

District to the western elevation of Bromsgrove

Council) Sport and Leisure Centre

Signage 2 - Extruded aluminium lettering
(BSLC) white illuminated directly above the
main entrance on the western elevation of
Bromsgrove Sport and Leisure Centre

The Dolphin Centre, School Drive,
Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B60 1AY

RECOMMENDATION: That advertisement consent be GRANTED

Consultations

Highways Consulted 15.08.2017, received 21.08.2017 - No objection

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan
BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP19 High Quality Design

Others
SPG2 Shopfronts and Advertisements Design Guide
NPPF NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Relevant Planning History

15/0919 New Sport and Leisure Centre including Approved 15.12.2015
swimming pools, health and fitness
suite, climbing wall, multiuse studio/
function and community spaces, wet
and dry changing, offices, associated
building and car park, accessible
parking, car park access, servicing and
landscaping.

Assessment of Proposal

This application relates to proposed signage to the front entrance of the new Bromsgrove
Sport and Leisure centre. Two signs are proposed, one would comprise large projecting
lettering spelling out the acronym for the centre down the length of the far left wall of the

Page 103



Agenda Item 12

Plan reference

western front elevation, the other would also comprise projecting lettering but would be
on a much smaller scale above the entrance doors on the same western elevation. Both
signs would comprise internal white LED halo illumination. The luminance level would not
exceed 375 cd/m2. The lettering of the larger sign would be dark grey and would project
a maximum of 28cm. The height of the individual letters would be 2.35 metres and the
overall width of the acronym would be 8.1 metres. The lettering of the smaller sign would
be white and the height of the individual letters would be 60cm and the width of the
acronym 2.8 metres.

In accordance with para 67 of the NPPF the control of advertisement should be efficient,
effective and simple in concept and operation. As such, they should be subject to control
only in the interests of amenity and public safety.

In terms of visual amenity, the signage would appear simple in design and proportionate
to the scale of the building to which it would be fitted. It comprises typical signage
expected on a building of this use both to identify it to the public from a distance and to
identify the pedestrian entrance.

The principle of illuminated signage is considered acceptable in this location because the
elevation on which the signage would be installed would be perpendicular to the
residential units and would be sufficient distance away. Furthermore, the level of internal
halo luminance would not exceed 375 cd/m2 and would not therefore harm residential
amenity. The Highways Officer has raised no objection to the proposal. In addition to the
level of luminance, the lighting would be static and set far back from the classified
Stratford Road so as to not give rise to any highway safety concerns.

In conclusion the proposal is considered to be acceptable as it would not give rise to any
concerns in respect of amenity or public safety.

RECOMMENDATION: That advertisement consent be GRANTED.
Conditions
1) This consent shall remain valid for a period of five years from the date hereof.

Reason: In accordance with Regulation 14(7) of the Town and Country
Planning (Control Of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

2) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans and drawings:

7957-PL0O01 Site Location Plan

7957-PL002 Proposed Signage Site Plan

7957/A(71)010 Proposed External Signage
BSLC\H####\FirstFixDetails\ltem-001 1st Fix Details
BSLC/BROMSGROVE/PROP/AL Rev D Proposed Sign Details
BSLC/BROMSGROVE/PROP/A2 Rev C Proposed Sign Details
BSLC/BROMSGROVE/PROP/A3 Rev C Proposed Sign Details

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Page 104



Agenda Item 12

Plan reference

3) No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site
or any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

4) No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to;

(@) endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or
aerodrome (civil or military);

(b)  obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal
or aid to navigation by water or air; or

(c) hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or
surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

5)  Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements,
shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the
site.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

6)  Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the
public.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

7) Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the
site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual
amenity.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

Case Officer: Laura Russ Tel: 01527 534122
Email: l.russ@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Mr Das To extend the Ground Floor to provide a 13.09.2017 17/00833/
Utility Room to the existing Kitchen and FUL

extend above this and the existing Ground
Floor W.C. to provide a First Floor En-Suite
to the existing Master Bedroom

10 Monument Lane, Lickey, Birmingham,
Worcestershire, B45 9QQ

RECOMMENDATION: That authority be delegated to the Head of Planning and
Regeneration Services to REFUSE planning permission upon expiry of the publicity
period on 7" September 2017.

Clir Deeming has requested that this application be considered by Planning Committee
rather than be determined under Delegated powers given the personal circumstances
outlined

Consultations

Lickey And Blackwell Parish Council Consulted 07.08.2017
No Comments Received To Date

3 neighbours notified — no responses to date
Site notice posted 17.8.17 Expires 7.9.17

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles

BDP4 Green Belt

BDP19 High Quality Design

Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPPG National Planning Practice Guidance
SPG1 Residential Design Guide

Relevant Planning History

17/0043 To extend the Ground Floor to provide a Withdrawn 15.02.2017
Utility Room to the existing Kitchen and
extend above this and the existing
Ground Floor W.C. to provide a First
Floor En-Suite and Dressing Area to the
existing Master Bedroom.

Page 107



Agenda Iltem 13

Plan reference

16/0024 Replacement 'verandah' at the rear of Approved 09.03.2016
the property. (Permitted development)

B/2008/0096 Erection of two storey extension to side  Approved 03.04.2008
of existing dwelling to include
accommodation for elderly relative.

B2001/0512 Two Storey Side Extension Approved  07.06.2001

Site Description

This particular site relates to a well enclosed detached property situated well back from
the road on the North Eastern side of Monument Lane. The site appears level from the
front, however it slopes down towards the rear of the plot in more of a substantive
manner. This allows for cellar access below the rear conservatory.

Monument Lane itself is elevated and commends views over the Lickey Hill towards the
conurbation. The property is located in Green Belt

Assessment of Proposal

Green Belt

Paragraph 89 of the National Planning Policy Framework explains that the construction of
new buildings should be regarded as inappropriate development in the Green Belt,
subject to a number of exceptions. One of these exceptions is the extension or alteration
of a building provided that it does not result in a disproportionate addition over and above
the size of the original building. This is outlined as follows:

The original property was 151m2
Previous extension 2001  Ground and first floor 64m2
Previous extension 2008 Ground and First floor 123.3m2
Garage 49.5m2
This extension Ground and First Floor (9.6)2 19.2m2
TOTAL EXTENSIONS 256m2

This equates to 169.5 % increase

Your adopted Policy BDP4 specifies that extensions that exceed 40% would be
considered disproportionate. Disproportionate additions in the Green Belt represent
inappropriate development and inappropriate development is, by definition, considered
harmful to the openness of the Green Belt. The NPPF requires LPA’s to attach
substantial weight the potential harm to the Green Belt.

Page 108



Agenda Iltem 13

Plan reference

In this instance the cumulative total of all the previous and this extension equatea to an
increase of 169.5%, which represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt and
causes significant harm to the openness of the Green Belt.

Very Special Circumstances

In this instance the applicant has cited ‘very special circumstances’ in order to outweigh
the harm. The ‘very special circumstances (VSC) offered relate to personal
circumstances relating to a medical requirement for the extension. Whilst mindful of and
sympathetic to the personal circumstances and medical condition of the applicant,
individual personal circumstances should not outweigh the harm by way of
inappropriateness particularly in this instance.

Members will also appreciate that the previous extension, under reference B/2008/0096
which approved the current size of the building (as an annex), evidenced an internal
layout inclusive of an en-suite in the main bedroom area. Whilst it is clear that the
Internal spaces were not created as originally approved, it could still be adapted / altered
to provide both an en-suite at first floor and utility space at ground level, without the need
for further extensions.

Therefore it is considered that the very special circumstances as outlined do not clearly
outweigh the significant harm to the openness of the Greenbelt.

Design and Appearance

The extension has been designed with a hipped roof in line with the original dwelling and
follows the same roofline height as the current extension.

Whilst not specifically set down or back the main bulk of the extended area is set down
from part of the main house, it is set within a large plot and materials are proposed to
match the existing.

Whilst the cumulative extent of the main extension area may be set down from the
original roof height of the dwelling it will now be considerably larger visually, larger in
volume and floor area, and the extent of this and previous works, will become visually
dominant over the host dwelling. This consequently does not contribute positively to the
character of the property or location and is therefore contrary to Policy BDP1, BDP19 or
comply with the guidance the Residential Design Guidelines (SPG).

Amenity

Given the context of the site and the location of the extension whilst still clearly visible
over the garage there would be no impact to neighbouring houses by way of overlooking
or loss of amenity and therefore this is considered acceptable in this instance.
Conclusion

In conclusion, the proposal would represent a disproportionate addition and

disproportionate additions represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt. In this
instances the VSC outlined and the lack of harm to residential amenity clearly do not

Page 109



Agenda Iltem 13

Plan reference

outweigh the significant harm to the openness of the Green Belt this extension proposal
would cause.

The resulting cumulative impact of the extensions now visually overwhelm the original /
host dwelling and do not positively contribute to the character of the property or in fact the
location

RECOMMENDATION: That authority be delegated to the Head of Planning Services to
refuse Planning Permission upon expiry of the publicity period on 7" September 2017.

Reasons for Refusal

1.

The extension represents a disproportionate addition in the Green Belt.
Disproportionate additions represent ‘inappropriate development in the Green Belt’
and ‘inappropriate development’ is by definition fundamentally harmful to the
openness of the Green Belt in this location.

Whilst there is no perceived harm to residential amenity and the personal
circumstances as outlined by the applicant do not overcome the harm of the
development or its inappropriateness and the harm to the openness of the Green
Belt in this instance. The proposal is considered contrary to Policy BDP4 of the
Bromsgrove District Plan 2011-20130 and the advice and guidance contained in
the NPPF (Para 87-89).

The resulting cumulative impact of the extensions now visually overwhelm the
original/host dwelling and do not positively contribute to the character of the
dwelling or in fact the location and therefore the proposal is considered contrary to
Policies BDP1, BDP19 of the Bromsgrove District Plan 2011-2030 and the
guidance contained in Supplementary Guidance Note 1.

Case Officer: Sarah Willetts Tel: 01527 881607
Email: Sarah.willetts@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 110



	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 3rd July 2017
	5 Tree Preservation Order (2) 2017 - Land at Foxlydiate ADR - land adjoining Curr Lane, Pumphouse Lane and Gypsy Lane
	Appendix ( 1) - Prov. Order - TPO (2) 2017 - Land Foxlydiate ADR
	Appendix (1) - Prov. Plan- TPO (2) 2017 - Land Foxlydiate ADR
	Appendix (2) - Revised Schedule - TPO (2) 2017 - Land at Foxlydiate ADR
	Appendix (2) - Revised Plan - TPO (2) 2017 - Land at Foxlydiate ADR
	Appendix (3) - W A Obj.letter - TPO (2) 2017 - Land Foxlydiate ADR
	Appendix (4) - Quality Ass.Chart - TPO (2) 2017 - Land at Foxlydiate ADR
	Appendix (5) - Photos - TPO (2) 2017 - Land Foxlydiate ADR

	6 Tree Preservation Order (3) 2017 - Tree on land at Lyttleton Place, Hagley
	TPO (3) 17 - Appendix A - Prov. Order - Tree on land at Lyttelton Place
	TPO (3) 17 - Appendices B (objection letter), C (support letter) and D (TEMPO Sheet) - Trees on land at Lyttelton Place, Hagley

	7 Tree Preservation Order (4) 2017 - Trees on land at 5 to 9 Station Road, Hagley
	Appendix A - Prov.Order - TPO (4) 17 - 5-9 Station Road, Hagley
	Appendix B - Objection - TPO(4) 17 -  5-9 Station Rd
	Appendix C - Tempo Ass  - TPO (4) 17-  5 - 9 Station Road, Hagley
	Appendix D - First Schedule  - TPO (4) 17 - 5 - 9 Station Road
	Appendix E - Plan -  TPO (4) 17 -  5 - 9 Station Road, Hagley

	8 2017/00550/FUL - Two-storey side extension and pitched roof over existing garage - 342 Alcester Road, Burcot, Bromsgrove B60 1BH - Mr and Mrs T Jennings
	9 2017/00615/FUL - Two-storey side and rear extension - 99 New Road, Bromsgrove, B60 2LL - Ms Lorna McNeil
	10 2017/00710/FUL - Demolition of conservatory and erection of a two-storey extension - Bridge House, Fish House Lane, Stoke Prior, Bromsgrove B60 4JT - Mr Julian Lewis
	11 2017/00728/FUL - Extension to garage - Poultry Farm Cottage, Agmore Lane, Tardebigge, Bromsgrove B60 1PS - Mr Geoff Ellis
	12 2017/00810/ADV -   SIGNAGE 1 - Large extrude aluminium letting (BSLC) back lit white illumination to the left hand side of the climbing wall block to the western elevation of Bromsgrove Sport and Leisure Centre, and  SIGNAGE 2 - extruded aluminium lettering (BSLC) white illuminated directly above the main entrance on the western elevation of Bromsgrove Sport and Leisure Centre - The Dolphin Centre, Schook Drive, Bromsgrove B60 1AY - Mr John Godwin for Bromsgrove District Council
	13 2017/00833/FUL - To extend the ground floor to provide a Utility Room to the existing kitchen and extend above this and the existing ground floor WC to provide a first floor en-suite to the existing master bedroom - 10 Monument Lane, Lickey, Birmingham B45 9QQ - Mr Das



